

What's New Saba Cloud | Update 51 | Nov 2021



Published: 01/28/2022 Part Number: G-SC-U51-6

Contents

Limitations on Warranties and Liability	vii
Change log	ix
New features at a glance by functional area	X
Global features	x
Analytics	x
Compensation	xi
Ecommerce	xii
HR	xii
Learning	xii
Marketplace	xiv
Meeting	XV
People	XV
Performance	xvi
REST APIS	xvi
Social	xvii
System	xvii
Walkthroughs	xviii
Deprecated features	xviii

Chapter 1: Global features.....19

Redesigned browse category pages20
Changes to Plan Beta

Chapter 2: Analytics	29
- Merge reports	30
Create a merge report	30
Execute a merge report	35
Cancel the auto-scheduled report execution	37
FAQs	38
Show manager data in manager run reports	38
'Run Once' option for Schedule creators & editors	40
Option to stop filter suggestions	41
Restrict proxy users from accessing Talent data	41
New Attributes	42
Additional attributes that now show time as per the time format	42
Learning	43

Self-Directed Learning	43
Social	44
Performance	48
Rewards	49
System	49
Talent	52
Updates to Insights	53
Updated Reports	53
Compliance Status Report	53
Updates to Insight reports	53

Chapter 3: Compensation	55
New option to add multiple comments to the memo field	56

Chapter	4: Ecom	merce	 •••••	 57

Ability to cancel an order if refund is processed by a payment gateway.......58

Chapter 5: HR	59
Skill redesign	60

Chapter 6: Learning	65
Assessment	66
Support unique questions in subsets for dynamic folders	66
Support for sequencing questions in a question pool	66
New assessor approval notification event	68
Content	69
Restrict transfer of personal information during content communication	69
Enhancements to the Create Tool	70
Content sign-off for content launched using API-based launch URL	72
Changes to content fields	72
Enhanced Course and Class Details Pages	73
Usability enhancements to the enhanced course and class detail pages	73
Session-based classes now sorted by session time on the enhanced course pa	age.75
New filter to show classes with at least one available seat	76
Learning Activity	76
New page to view actions performed after course discontinuation	76
Show or hide due date on the Assign Learning page	78
Set content folder in a course template	78
Enhancements to simplified courses	79
Course owner-based restrictions on learning catalog	81
Display price lists based on audience types	82
Ability to clear attempt data and reset attempts for content from the transcript pa	age.83

Auto-completion of a virtual class when participant views class record	ing85
Allow a class to be marked delivered even when learner session is unsucc	essful.88;
Auto launch attribute for certifications and curricula is now editable	89
Custom fields to display UI label values	90
Redesigned Certification and Curriculum Detail Pages	92
Features	93
Points to note	93
Configure the redesigned pages	93
View the redesigned certification and curriculum detail page	95
Register for a certification or curriculum	104
Add a certification or curriculum to plan from the redesigned pages	108
Switch to the legacy certification or curriculum page view	109
Limitations of redesigned certification and curriculum detail pages	110

Chapter 7: Marke	place	111
-------------------------	-------	-----

Marketplace Classic	
Cornerstone Content connector enhancements	112
Connectors no longer available in Marketplace Classic	114
Marketplace (Beta)	114
Moving connectors from Classic to Beta	114
UI Enhancements on the Marketplace (Beta) dashboard	117
Enhancements to MS Teams Bot	

Chapter 8: Meeting121

Enhancements to the Manage Events page	122
Now manage Saba Meeting recordings from Saba Cloud	122
New manage baba meeting recordings norn baba cioda	

Chapter 9: People	125
Enhancements to the smart list criteria	126
Enhanced page for adding a course to a transcript from a certification	129
Display terms and conditions before uploading the profile picture	130
Configuration	131
Display terms and conditions during account activation	131
Display terms and conditions during profile update	133
Additions to the More Info section of the New Profile page	134
New setting to define profile visibility	135

Chapter 10: Performance	137
New Check-in overview page	138
New configuration to view past check-ins	140
Performance features now enabled by default	140

Chapter 11: REST API	.143
• New REST APIs	144
API to retrieve the locales	144
Attachment APIs to support additional objects	145
Updated REST APIs	148
Find Certifications and Find Curricula APIs to return related information	148
Resource Assignment APIs now include additional information	152
Support for the enrollmentStatus field in the Enrollment Search API	154

Chapter 12:	Social15	5
-------------	----------	---

Support for search within the enhanced Workspace	156
Additional search options for Workspace in global search	156
View details option on the Workspace page	157
Ability to reuse images in Workspace	158
New search by domain field added to the user generated content page	158
New and Edit page options on the new Workspace UI	159
Copy URL option added to Workspace page	161
Workspace Enhanced view	162

Chapter 13: System	165
Data Integration	
Option to select PGP keys to encrypt data import log files	166
Audit capability added to price or rate change in data import	166
Ability to remove path, module, or learning elements using data ir	nport167
Configure the SameSite attribute for cookies issued by Saba Cloud	168

Chapter	r 14: Walkthroughs	
New	walkthroughs	

Chapter 15: Deprecated 1	features171
IE 11 - End of Support	

Notice

Limitations on Warranties and Liability

Saba Software, Inc. reserves the right to make changes in information contained in this document without notice.

In no event shall Saba or its suppliers be liable for any damages whatsoever (including, without limitation, damages for loss of business profits, business interruption, loss of business information, or any other pecuniary loss) arising out of or relating to this documentation or the information contained in it, even if Saba has been advised of the possibility of such damages and whether arising from tort (including negligence), breach of contract or otherwise.

This document may only be reproduced and distributed in whole for use by licensed users. No part of this document may be reproduced in any form for any other purpose without the prior written consent of Saba Software, Inc.

The software described in this documentation is copyrighted and is confidential information and a proprietary product of Saba Software, Inc.

U.S. GOVERNMENT RESTRICTED RIGHTS. If licensee is the United States Government or any contractor thereof, all licenses granted in the License Agreement accompanying this product are subject to the following: (i) for acquisition by or on behalf of civilian agencies, as necessary to obtain protection as "commercial computer software" and related documentation in accordance with the terms of this Commercial Software Agreement as specified in 48 C.F.R. 12.212 of the Federal Acquisition Regulations and its successors; (ii) for acquisition by or on behalf of units of the Department of Defense ("DOD") as necessary to obtain protection as "commercial computer software" and related documentation in accordance with the terms of this commercial computer software license as specified in 48 C.F.R. 227-7202-2 of the DOD F.A.R. Supplement and its successors.

Saba and the Saba logo are registered trademarks of Saba Software, Inc. and Saba product names are the trademarks of Saba Software, Inc. All other product names mentioned in this manual are the property and may be trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective owners, and are used for identification purposes only.

© 2021 Saba Software, Inc. All rights reserved.

Change log

The below table summarizes the list of changes introduced in a particular version of this document.

Table 1: Summary of changes

Version	Date	Change description	Functional area	Feature
1.0	11-10- 2021	Initial version	N/A	N/A
2.0	15-10- 2021	Updated topic	Learning	Custom fields to display UI values
		Updated topic	Performance	New Check-in overview page
		Updated topics	Analytics	 Option to stop filter suggestions Merge reports 'Run Once' option for Schedule creators & editors Show manager data in manager run reports
3.0	22-10- 2021	Updated topic	Performance	New Check-in overview page
4.0	29-10- 2021	Updated topic	Analytics	Merge reports
5.0	18-11- 2021	Updated topic	Compensa- tion	New option to add multiple com- ments to the memo field
			Learning	View the redesigned certification and curriculum detail page
			Analytics	Option to stop filter suggestions
6.0	7-12-2021	New topic	Learning	Changes to content fields
7.0	28-01- 2022	New topic	Learning	New filter to show classes with at least one available seat
		Updated topic	People	New setting to define profile visibility
		Updated topic	Analytics	Social Rewards

New features at a glance by functional area

The following table summarizes the list of features introduced in the Nov 2021 release and their potential impact on your environment.

- **On by default** does not necessarily imply that the feature is immediately available to your users. It may require a user with an appropriate administrator role to turn on applicable functionality, business rules, and so on.
- NEW indicates a new feature introduced in this update. Others are enhancements or changes to the existing functionality.

Feature	On by default?	Admin setup required	Support ticket required	Affected audience
New context-sensitive help links	\bigotimes			All
Redesigned browse category pages		System Ad- min		All
Changes to Plan Beta		System Ad- min		End User

Global features

Analytics

Feature	On by default?	Admin setup required	Support ticket required	Affected audience
Merge reports NEW			\bigotimes	Analytics Admin Analytics User
Show manager data in manager run reports NEW			\bigotimes	Analytics Admin Manager

Feature	On by default?	Admin setup required	Support ticket required	Affected audience
'Run Once' option for Schedule creators & editors	\bigotimes			Analytics Admin Analytics User
Option to stop filter suggestions NEW			\bigotimes	Analytics Admin
Restrict proxy users from access- ing Talent data NEW	۲			Analytics Admin Analytics User
New Attributes NEW	\bigotimes			Analytics Admin Analytics User
Updates to Insights	\bigotimes			Analytics Admin Analytics User
Updated Reports	\bigotimes			Analytics Admin Analytics User
Additional attributes that now show time as per the time format	\bigotimes			Analytics Admin Analytics User

Compensation

Feature	On by default?	Admin setup required	Support ticket required	Affected audience
New option to add multiple com- ments to the memo field	\odot			Admin, Manager

Ecommerce

Feature	On by default?	Admin setup required	Support ticket required	Affected audience
Ability to cancel an order if re- fund is processed by a payment gateway	\bigotimes			Registrar

HR

Feature	On by default?	Admin setup required	Support ticket required	Affected audience
Skill redesign		System Ad- min		All

Learning

Feature	On by default?	Admin setup required	Support ticket required	Affected audience
Support unique questions in subsets for dynamic folders	\bigotimes			Assessment Ad- min
Support for sequencing ques- tions in a question pool	\bigotimes			Assessment Ad- min
New assessor approval notifica- tion event		System Ad- min		Assessor
Restrict transfer of personal in- formation during content com- munication				Content Admin
Enhancements to the Create Tool		Market- place Admin		Content Admin

Feature	On by default?	Admin setup required	Support ticket required	Affected audience
Content sign-off for content launched using API-based launch URL		System Ad- min		End User
Changes to content fields	\bigotimes			Content Admin
Usability enhancements to the enhanced course and class detail pages	(End User Manager
Session-based classes now sor- ted by session time on the en- hanced course page	۲	System Ad- min		End User
New filter to show classes with at least one available seat				End User
New page to view actions per- formed after course discontinu- ation NEW	\bigotimes			Learning Admin
Show or hide due date on the Assign Learning page	\bigotimes	System Ad- min		Manager Registrar
Set content folder in a course template	\bigotimes			Learning Admin
Enhancements to simplified courses	\bigotimes			Local Catalog Ad- min Learning Admin
Course owner-based restrictions on learning catalog		System Ad- min		Learning Admin Instructor Super User
Display price lists based on audi- ence types		System Ad- min		Learning Admin
Ability to clear attempt data and reset attempts for content from the transcript page	\bigotimes			Learning Admin Instructor
Auto-completion of a virtual class when participant views class recording		System Ad- min		Learning Admin End User

Feature	On by default?	Admin setup required	Support ticket required	Affected audience
Allow a class to be marked de- livered even when learner ses- sion is unsuccessful				Learning Admin Instructor
Custom fields to display UI label values	\bigotimes			
Redesigned Certification and Curriculum Detail Pages NEW		System Ad- min	\bigotimes	End User Manager

Marketplace

Feature	On by default?	Admin setup required	Support ticket required	Affected audience
Marketplace Classic				
Cornerstone Content connector enhancements	\bigotimes			Marketplace Ad- min
Connectors no longer available in Marketplace Classic	\bigotimes			Marketplace Ad- min
Marketplace (Beta)		•		
Moving connectors from Classic to Beta NEW	\bigotimes			Marketplace Ad- min
UI Enhancements on the Market- place (Beta) dashboard	\bigotimes			Marketplace Ad- min
Enhancements to MS Teams Bot	\bigotimes			Marketplace Ad- min

Meeting

Feature	On by default?	Admin setup required	Support ticket required	Affected audience
Enhancements to the Manage Events page	\bigotimes			Virtual Event Ad- min
Now manage Saba Meeting re- cordings from Saba Cloud	\bigotimes			Virtual Event Ad- min

People

Feature	On by default?	Admin setup required	Support ticket required	Affected audience
Enhancements to the smart list criteria	\bigotimes			People Admin
Enhanced page for adding a course to a transcript from a certification	\bigotimes			End User, People Admin
Display terms and conditions before uploading the profile pic- ture		System Ad- min		All
Additions to the More Info sec- tion of the New Profile page	\bigotimes			People Admin, End User
New setting to define profile vis- ibility NEW		System Ad- min		System Admin

Performance

Feature	On by default?	Admin setup required	Support ticket required	Affected audience
New Check-in overview page		System Ad- min		All
New configuration to view past check-ins		System Ad- min		Managers
Performance features now en- abled by default	\bigotimes			All

REST APIs

Feature	On by default?	Admin setup required	Support ticket required	Affected audience
API to retrieve the locales NEW	\bigotimes			Developer
Attachment APIs to support ad- ditional objects NEW	\bigotimes			Developer
Find Certifications and Find Cur- ricula APIs to return related in- formation	\bigotimes			Developer
Resource Assignment APIs now include additional information	\bigotimes			Developer
Support for the enrollmentStatus field in the Enrollment Search API	\bigotimes			Developer

Social

Feature	On by default?	Admin setup required	Support ticket required	Affected audience
Support for search within the enhanced Workspace NEW	\bigotimes			Social Admin
Additional search options for Workspace in global search	\bigotimes			Social Admin, End User
View details option on the Work- space page		System Ad- min		Social Admin
Ability to reuse images in Work- space		System Ad- min		Social Admin
New search by domain field ad- ded to the user generated con- tent page	\bigotimes			Social Admin, User
New and Edit page options on the new Workspace UI	\bigotimes			Social Admin
Copy URL option added to Work- space page	\bigotimes			Social Admin
Workspace Enhanced view	\bigcirc			Social Admin

System

Feature	On by default?	Admin setup required	Support ticket required	Affected audience
Configure the SameSite attribute for cookies issued by Saba Cloud	\bigotimes			System Admin
Audit capability added to price or rate change in data import	\bigotimes			System Admin
Option to select PGP keys to en- crypt data import log files		\bigotimes		System Admin

Feature	On by default?	Admin setup required	Support ticket required	Affected audience
Ability to remove path, module, or learning elements using data import	\bigotimes			System Admin

Walkthroughs

Feature	On by default?	Admin setup required	Support ticket required	Affected audience
New walkthroughs NEW	\bigotimes			All

Deprecated features

Feature	On by default?	Admin setup required	Support ticket required	Affected audience
IE 11 - End of Support				All

Global features

Topics:

- New context-sensitive help links
- Redesigned browse
 category pages
- Changes to Plan Beta

This section includes topics to guide you through the global new features and enhancements.

New context-sensitive help links

Context-sensitive help links are now available in Saba Cloud in some areas. These links open the appropriate online documentation for the feature. In this update, we've setup several links that display the information you need for the current page. We will keep adding more of these help links in upcoming updates.

For any page that does not have context-sensitive help defined, the Help center's welcome page is displayed, allowing you to enter search criteria for the information you want to find.

For the context-sensitive help to function correctly, you need to ensure that the **Admin Help URL** and **Help URL** properties under the *<Microsite>>* Site Properties > Web Variables point to the Saba Cloud Help center's URL:

https://help.sabacloud.com/sabacloud/index.html

After you configure these properties correctly using the above Help URL, now when you navigate to a particular page for example, **Analytics > Settings** and click the Help link, the Analytics settings page from the Help portal shows up instead of the default help home page.

= saba, + Admin	Admin V Enter text to search	Q. Brows	ie 🗸 📕	tions Hi Pat Rose			
Now part of Comerstone	nerce 🛯 🥳 Performance 🖉 Pulse 360 🤹 Taler	nt 🍂 Recruiting		= saba	Search		More help *
< Back				Home > Analytics > Setup Saba Analytics (Admins > Configuration > What all car	n i configure?	a • •
Settings			P	 Analytics Satup Saba Analytics Admins 	What all can I configure the following	ire? .setlings:	—
Configuration			0	 Get started with Analytics Activate the Analytics service Report types 	 Table 1. Enable or Disable Fi Setting 	unctionality under Analytics & Description	_
Subscription			Configure I	 Configuration What all can I configure? 	Data Extract	You can use this option to enable or disable the functionality.	
Custom Metric Beta			Change Pa	Analytics feature matrix View the Analytics usage statistics	Group Report Dashboard	You can use this option to enable or disable the functionality. You can use this option to enable or disable the functionality.	
Import/Export Reports		/	Downloads	Configure the global theme Import or export report	Performance reviews attributes for manager	Enabling this will allow managers to view the Performance reviews attributes.	
Manager Dashboards			Meetings	Configure the number of columns for sorting report data.	Attributes for employees Ouerterly and Hourly scheduling	Enabling this will allow employees to view the Performance reviews and goal attrou	
Themes	ing Help for Analytics > Settings now opens th	ne	Calendar			,, ,	
Configure Labels	ropriate online documentation for the feature		What's New?	I			
LOV Color Configuration			Help	£.			
helpdev saha.com/sahacloud/index.html?contex	tid-admin-an	. ≜ + Wh	Sian out				

Figure 1: An example showing context sensitive help

Redesigned browse category pages

This update continues to further enhance the usability of the new **Browse** menu by introducing the redesigned browse category pages.

When users click a top-level category name from the new **Browse** menu, Saba Cloud now displays a completely enhanced browse category page that highlights featured elements at the top of the page and displays redesigned carousels and cards for various resources.

Note: The new **Browse** menu is not available by default. Your System Administrator must enable the **Enable the new Browse functionality** setting under **Foundation > System** service.

If a category contains featured content, featured categories, or sub-categories, then the redesigned browse category page displays one or more of the following three tabs at the top of the page:

Featured Learning



Figure 2: Redesigned browse category page - Featured Learning tab

- This tab displays learning items that are marked as featured and assigned to the main category. Only featured learning items without any progress are shown.
- If no featured item is available, then this tab is not displayed.
- The elements in this tab are sorted by their rating (high to low) followed by their name (ascending).
- A maximum of up to 20 elements are displayed in the ribbon.
- When there are more than 20 elements in the ribbon, the **Show all** link is displayed. Clicking the **Show all** link leads to the results page with pre-selected search filters.
- Featured Categories

Featured Learning	Featured Categories	Subcategories								
Business-Software (23)	Business Software and Tools (53)	Career Development (2)	Customer Service1 (1)	Data Networking (1)	Human Resources (7)					
JAVA (1)	Marketing (38)	Networking (1)	Outils bureautiques (23)	Professional Development (15)	Robot Framework (1)					
Show More										

Figure 3: Redesigned browse category page - Featured Categories tab

• This tab displays featured categories one level below the main category only if the category is not empty; that is, either it is associated with any resource or has at least one subcategory.

- If no featured category is available, then this tab is not displayed.
- The featured categories are sorted by their name in an ascending order.
- The **Show more** link is displayed only when there are more than 12 featured categories.
- Clicking the **Show more** link displays 2 additional rows.
- A maximum of up to 48 elements are displayed.

• Subcategories



Figure 4: Redesigned browse category page - Subcategories tab

- This tab displays both featured and non-featured sub-categories that are below the main category only if the subcategory is not empty; that is, either it is associated with any resource or has at least one subcategory.
- If no sub-category is available, then this tab is not displayed.
- The sub-categories are sorted by their name in an ascending order.
- The **Show more** link is displayed only when there are more than 12 featured sub-categories.
- Clicking the **Show more** link displays 2 additional rows.
- A maximum of up to 48 elements are displayed.

The redesigned browse category page also includes a **Classic View** link. By clicking this link, you can navigate to the legacy browse category page.

To navigate up the category hierarchy, that is, from a sub-category browse page to the parent category browse page, click the **Back** link on top of the page. The **Back** link is visible only when there is parent category.

Further, various items in a category are displayed under different tabs such as All, Learning Catalog, Links, Files, Blogs, and so on.

- All tab
 - To view all resources in a selected category, click the **All** tab. The tab displays various resource ribbons.
 - A resource ribbon is displayed only if it contains any data.
 - Each ribbon can show a maximum of 20 elements. To scroll through them, either click the left and right arrow icons or use the dot navigation.
 - Click the **Show all** link for a ribbon to view all items in it. The **Show all** link is displayed only when there are more than 20 elements in the ribbon.





• Other tabs

You can click a resource tab to view all items in it. The same view is displayed when you click the **Show all** link for a ribbon in the **All** tab or the resource tab name.

For example, to see only learning items in a category, click either the **Show all** link for the 'Learning Catalog' ribbon in the **All** tab or click the **Learning Catalog** tab. You can further search for resources and narrow down search results by applying various filters. The filters vary depending on the type of resource.

	-	Sort By Relev	ance 🗸 🕇	Filters
Гуре	Title	Castured	Available from on or after	r
All 🗸	Title	Featured	YYYY-MM-DD	
Available from on or before	Owner	Rating	Тад	
YYYY-MM-DD	Owner Q	All	✓ Tag	Q
				ent.
			TIPPS FÜ	R DE
			TIPPS FÜ FÜHRUNGSA	R DE
Online Learning	ERIE HEDOMADAIRE	Online Learning	TIPPS FÜ FÜHRUNGSA	R DE

Figure 6: Learning Catalog tab

Similarly, to see all file resources, either click the **Files** tab or the **Show All** link for the File ribbon in the **All** tab.



Figure 7: Files tab

If a tab does not contain any item in it, then an appropriate message is displayed.

Creative							CLASSIC VIEW		
All	Learning Catalog	Links	Files	Blogs	Sort By A-Z	~	▼ Filters ▼		
	Sorry, we couldn't find any results that match your search criteria.								

Figure 8: Empty tab

Click a card in a ribbon to view the details page for that item. To see the available actions for an item, click the vertical ellipses (3 dots) icon on the card.

S Curriculum
Creative thinking
Assigned
☆☆☆☆☆ : View

Figure 9: Card with actions

Supported resources

The various tabs support the following resource types:

- Learning Catalog Course, Class, Certification, Curriculum, Package, Online Learning (me:time content)
- Blogs Blog, Blog Post
- Links
- Files
- · Videos Video, Video Content, Video Channel

Changes to Plan Beta

A few updates back, Saba Cloud introduced the enhanced, intuitive, and responsive view of the plan called **Plan Beta**. Depending on the system configuration, Saba Cloud displayed either the old Plan or the enhanced Plan Beta or both the views to users under their **Me** tab.

In this update, the names of the **Plan Beta** menu and page are changed as follows to maintain consistency and improve user experience.

Table 2: Changes to Plan Beta menu and page

UI Element	Old Name	New Name
Menu	Plan Beta	Plan (Card View)
Page	Plan Beta	My Plan (Card View)

In addition to these changes, the **Try Beta** and **Turn Off Beta** buttons have been removed from the new **My Plan** and the **My Plan (Card View)** pages respectively.



Figure 10: Plan



Figure 11: Plan (Card View)

Analytics

Topics:

- Merge reports
- Show manager data in manager run reports
- 'Run Once' option for Schedule creators & editors
- Option to stop filter suggestions
- Restrict proxy users from accessing Talent data
- New Attributes
- Updates to Insights
- Updated Reports

This section includes topics to guide you through new features and enhancements under Analytics.

Merge reports

Prior to this update, attributes from different entity groups could not be combined in one report because of granularity and context mismatch.

In this update, Analytics now allows merging a maximum of 3 reports (with a maximum of 50 columns) one below the other.

Merge reports help avoid the repetitive task of copying data from multiple reports and then formatting them. Merge reports can be useful in scenarios such as:

- · Combining reports of Course, Certification and Curricula
- Combining exception reports with regular reports

Note: You can only merge flat list reports.

Such Merge reports can only be downloaded or scheduled and cannot be launched like other reports.

Note: To enable the feature, submit a support request. For assistance, contact Saba support. Merge reports do not support **Run as recipient context**.

	Merge report authoring								CLOSE SAVE		0
s	earch and select report	6	You can merge columns from	mn	naximum 3 reports						×
	Q	Dimensions and metrics from selected reports (4/50)									
•	Dimensions 🗸 Metrics		My Team's Certifications		My Team's Curricula		My Team's Assigned Courses		Merged Column Name		
s	elected 3 Reports and their columns	1	Certification Name	:	Curriculum Name	ł	Course Title]	Learning Item Name		1
1	My Team's Certifications		Student Certification Assig		Student Curriculum Assian	:	Course Assigned On	1	Assignment Date		
	Preview Delete										
	Person Full Name	1	Student Certification Due D	1	Student Curriculum Due Da	÷	Course Target Date	1	Learning Due Date		÷
	Person Job Type Name										
	Certification Name	1	Certification Count	:	Curriculum Count	÷	Total Number of Courses		Item Count		н
	Certification Status										
	Student Certification Assigned On										
	Certification Assigned By						***				
	Student Certification Due Date		띂 Filters 🕕							×	
	Certificate Overdue by Days										
	Student Certification Status		My Team's Certification	on	9						
	Student Certification Acquired On		> My Team's Currieula					-		-	
	Student Certification Expiration Date		Finy reams curricula							-	
	Is Recertification Required		 My Team's Assigned 	Co	urses						
	Certification Completion Percentage		Course Assigned On*		Range		Specific date		—		

Figure 12: Merge report

Create a merge report

To create a merge report:

- 1. As an Administrator, click Analytics in the main menu.
- 2. Click Create Report and select Merge Report as the report type.

< Back		CLOSE SAVE
Search and select report	i You can merge columns from maximum 3 reports	×
Type to search Q	Dimensions and metrics from selected reports	
✓ Dimensions ✓ Metrics	Drag and drop metric/dimension here	
Selected 0 Reports and their columns		

Figure 13: Build a Merge Report

3. Search and select the required reports to merge from the **Search and select report** drop-down list.

(K Back	С	CLOSE	SAVE	0
Searc	h and select report	You can merge columns from maximum 3 reports			×
Cou	rse x Q	Dimensions and metrics from selected reports			
	×	Drag and drop metric/dimension here			
	Report Title				
R	Course Activity	•••)
Õ	Course Completion Details				
0	Course Completion Report with Equivalents				
0	Course Completion Report with Equivalents 🖕				
4	1 - 10				

Figure 14: Search and select a report to merge

After you select the search and select the report, they start appearing under **Dimensions and metrics from the selected reports** section. The **Filters** sections shows the filters from the selected reports.

Note: You cannot edit the filters of the merged reports. However, filters can be set while executing the report. If you want to change the filters, edit the primary constituent report.

< Back					CLOSE SAVE	0
Search and select report	6	You can merge co	lumns from maximum 3	reports		×
	٩ ٦	Dimensions and metric	s from selected reports			
✓ Dimensions ✓ Metrics		Course Activity	Course Completion	My Team's Assigne	Merged Column Na	
Selected 3 Reports and their columns						
Course Activity	~		Drag and drop me	etric/dimension here		
Course Completion Details	~			•••)
My Team's Assigned Courses	~	🗄 Filters				ž
	1	 My Team's A Course Com Course Activ 	ssigned Courses pletion Details rity			

Figure 15: Dimensions and metrics from the selected reports

4. You can choose to preview the selected reports by clicking **Preview**.

< Back		
Merge		
Search and select report	(i) You can merge colum	ins from maximum 3 report:
Q,	Dimensions and metrics fro	om selected reports
✓ Dimensions ✓ Metrics	Course Activity	Course Completion
Selected 3 Reports and their columns		
Course Activity ^		
Preview Delete		
Course Title	🖶 Filters	
Class ID		
Class Delivery Name	My Team's Assi	gned Courses
Person Full Name	Course Comple	tion Details

Figure 16: Preview or Delete the selected reports

5. Start adding the required columns (dimensions and metrics) from the selected reports. To add them, drag them from the appropriate report listed on the left-hand side and drop them to that specific report listed under the **Dimensions and metrics from the selected reports** section.

(I'Y') Merge				CLOSE	SAVE
Search and select report	You can merge colum	ns from maximum 3 reports			×
Q	Dimensions and metrics fro	om selected reports			
✓ Dimensions ✓ Metrics	Course Activity	Course Completion Details	My Team's Assigned Courses	Merged Column Name	
Selected 3 Reports and their columns	Course Title				
Course Activity	F	Drag and drop	metric/dimension here		
Preview Delete	≒ Filters				Ŷ
Course Title	*_ · · · · · · · ·				~
Class Delivery Name	► My Team's Assig	gned Courses			
Person Full Name	▹ Course Complet	tion Details			
Instructor Full Name	► Course Activity				
Scheduled Class Location					
Resource Name					

Note: An icon will indicate, if the field that you choose to drag and drop does not fit.

Figure 17: Drag and Drop columns

You can click **Remove** from the field's action menu to delete the selected Dimensions or Metrics.

6. After you've added the required dimensions and metrics, you can rename them by entering an appropriate name for the merged columns in the **Merged Column Name**.

Note: If you do not provide a value for **Merged Column Name**, the parent attribute names are used with '/' as a separator.

Merge report authoring				CLOSE	E 🕖
Search and select report	You can merge columns from	maximum 3 reports			×
Q	Dimensions and metrics from select	ted reports (4/50)			
Dimensions V Metrics	My Team's Certifications	My Team's Curricula	My Team's Assigned Courses	Merged Column Name	
Selected 3 Reports and their columns	Certification Name	Curriculum Name	Course Title	Learning Item Name	:
My Team's Certifications	II Otudaat Outlifeation Look	Obudant Oursingham Logism	Ourses having of Or		
Preview Delete	E Student Certification Assig	Student Cumculum Assign :	course Assigned on :	Assignment Date	:
Person Full Name	Student Certification Due D	Student Curriculum Due Da	Course Target Date	Learning Due Date	
Person Job Type Name					
Certification Name	Certification Count	Curriculum Count	Total Number of Courses	Item Count	:
Certification Status					
Student Certification Assigned On					
Certification Assigned By			•••		
Student Certification Due Date					ž
Certificate Overdue by Days					
Student Certification Status	My Team's Certification	16			
Student Certification Acquired On	 My Team's Curricula 				-
Student Certification Expiration Date	, my reams cumcula				_
Is Recertification Required	 My Team's Assigned Control 	ourses			
Certification Completion Percentage	Course Assigned On*	Range	Specific date	~	

Figure 18: Merge report

7. Click Save.

Save Report			×
Report Details Security			
Name*	Category *		
My Merged Report	Adoption	× ×	ADD
Description			
Configure Blank Columns			
		CANCEL	SAVE

Figure 19: Save Report

8. Under the **Report Details** section, enter a name for the report and a suitable description. Select a category to which the report should belong from the **Category** drop-down list. After the report is created, it starts appearing under that category. As an **Administrator**, you can also create a new category.

Note: While saving a report, you can add blanks columns to that specific report. The blank columns that you add will only be applicable to new reports and not to existing reports.

You can add multiple blank columns to a report. You can add blank columns for all the reports, except the **Pivot table** report type.

The number of blank columns that you can add depends on the **Maximum number of blank columns allowed per report** property under **Analytics Settings > Configuration**. The maximum number of blank columns allowed per report is 7.

You can use blank columns as the 'sign-in' columns when the report is printed. You will see the blank columns as the last columns, when the report is executed or exported.

9. Under the **Security** section, you can make this report available for viewing to managers or employees by selecting an appropriate audience. You can also select the required security roles for a specific audience. In addition, you can also choose a specific person with whom you want to share the report which is only available for the **Admin** audience.

Merged report can only be shared with a common subset of sharing setting of constituent reports. For example:

Sharing Type	Report 1	Report 2	Merge Report
Admin	 Image: A second s	~	
Manager	 Image: A second s		X
Employees		\checkmark	X

10 Click **Save**. After the report is saved, it will appear under the appropriate category.

Note: If the individual reports that have been used in a Merge report are edited, a notification email is sent to the authors of the Merge and the individual reports indicating all the changes.

Execute a merge report

To execute a merge report:

- 1. As an Administrator, click Analytics in the main menu. As a Manager, navigate to My Team > Analytics. If you are a learner, navigate to Me > Analytics.
- 2. Search for the report or browse through the listed categories and click the name of the merge report to open it. You will be prompted to enter or update the filter values prior running the report.

Note: You can change the filter values when viewing a report. Click **Next**, after you enter the filter values. The new filter values are applied the next time you open the report, instead of the default values. The saved filter values will be auto populated based on the following hierarchy of preference:

- Merge report filter values
- Individual report filter values
- · Report definition filter values

While executing the Merge report, if a dimension or a metric that is used in the Merge report is removed from the underlying report, that specific column appears blank with no value.

My Merge Report			×
1 Filters			2 Run
* <u>→</u> Filters			×
Course Completion Details			
Registration Date*	① Range	Specific date Specific date Specific date	.
Is Terminated	Equal	V No X V	
➤ Course Activity			
			CANCEL NEXT

Figure 20: Executing the Merge Report

 After you enter the filter values, you can choose to not include charts, filters, report execution and grouping details in a report by selecting the **Data only** option while exporting or scheduling this report.

Note: By default, this option is disabled in which case, the charts, filters, report execution and grouping details will be shown like before. If enabled, the exports or subscribed reports will only show data.

While scheduling the report, if the **Data Only** option is selected, then a message indicating that this report has more data than what it currently shows will be present in the email body.

You can set a delimiter for the CSV reports.

My Mer	rge Report	\times	
🖉 Filte	ters	2 Run	
0	CSV file exceeding 1024 KB size shall be delivered as a zip file	×	
Da CS rel CS	iata Only ISV will only contain the data table. Blank columns and total rows will not be added to the data table. Information related to the report like run details, filters, grouping options, n elated to size and time of data, will be excluded. SV Separator ,	nessages	
	Data rows with details of the terminated user profiles marked for 'Stop Processing' will be removed from the downloaded data file. You may find differences in visualization or even the data based on the removed records. This behavior is in line with the interpretations for the 'Right to Restrict Processing' clause in GDP	the R. ×	
	CANCEL BACK	RUN	

Figure 21: Executing the Merge Report

4. Click **Run** to schedule the merge report for execution.

Note: While scheduling a Merge report, you are also provided the SFTP option.



Figure 22: Merge Report scheduled for execution

If the report was already executed earlier, you can either choose to view the existing instance or schedule a new execution.

My merge report		\times
An instance of report executed at 30-S choose to view the existing instance o NOTE: New execution might cause sor	EP-2021 7:06 PM is readily available. You ca or schedule a new execution. me delay in data availability	n
	CANCEL NEW EXIST	ING

Figure 23: Already executed

The execution of Merge Report happens in **async** mode.
After the report execution is successful, you receive a notification email indicating that the report is ready to download.



Figure 24: Merge Report ready for download

Cancel the auto-scheduled report execution

To cancel the auto-scheduled report execution:

- 1. As an Administrator, click Analytics in the main menu. As a Manager, navigate to My Team > Analytics. If you are a learner, navigate to Me > Analytics.
- **2.** Search for the merge report or browse through the listed categories.
- **3.** Click X to cancel the auto-scheduled report execution.

*	My Merge Report Created By: Chavla Kalpana This report has been scheduled for execution 🔇	
	Click X to c	cancel the auto-scheduled eport execution.

Figure 25: Cancel the auto-scheduled report execution

4. Click **OK** to confirm the cancellation.



Figure 26: Cancel the auto-scheduled report execution

FAQs

What if a constituent report of a merged report is edited?

The merged report will modify to reflect the changes made in parent report. An email will be sent to the Merge Report owner highlighting the changes in the constituent report.

- If a selected column is deleted from the parent report, then that column ceases to exist as part of new execution of merged report too.
- Any addition of dimension and metric will not affect the construct of the existing merged report.

If the sharing setting of any constituent report is changed, and it isn't aligned with that of the Merge Report, then the execution of Merge Report will result in an error.

Is a report license consumed when creating Merge Report?

No

How many rows and columns can a Merge Report have?

300,000 rows and up to 50 columns

Show manager data in manager run reports

Prior to this update, when reports (Flat list, Cross tab, and Data extract) were run in the manager context (via the My Team menu), data of only their direct reportees and indirect reportees (with the help of the "Include Manager Hierarchy" filter) was shown. However, managers were not able to see their own data. They had to collate such data from My Team and Me sections for reporting purposes.

In this update, the Analytics Admin can now choose if a report can show manager's data along with the team's data.

Note: To enable this feature, submit a support request. For assistance, contact Saba support. By default, this feature is disabled.

The Admin will have control to qualify any report, for managers to see their own data, along with the teams. After this feature is enabled, you will start seeing the **Include Manager's Own Data** check-box while sharing a report with managers.

My report: Security Settings		? ×
Audience Admin Manager Employee Include Manager's Own Data		
Security Role	Person Name	
Select Role 🗸	Select person	Q
Analytics Admin Internal Manager Basic	c Privileges 🛞	
Direct Report URLs		
Admin	\sim	
https://dq3antqe.sabacloud.com/Saba/Web Manager	o/ANTQE/goto/analytics/rptdf0000	
https://dq3antqe.sabacloud.com/Saba/Web	o/ANTQE/goto/myteamAnalytics/rp	
	CANCEL	SAVE

Figure 27: Include Manager's Own Data

Now when a report (Flat list, Cross tab, and Data extract) is shared with Managers, you can use the **Include Manager's Own Data** check box. By default, the **Include Manager's Own Data** check box is unchecked.

Note: For all the existing reports shared with managers, the value for this check box is unchecked.

Include Manager's Own Data check box is also available when sharing all pre-defined reports, except fixed query reports.

Note: You should not check this check box if the report contains sensitive information.

Such shared reports have an additional filter called **Show Manager Data** that the manager can set to Yes/No to include or filter manager data for that report.

		;	,
	AND operator	r applied to all filters	
Is Terminated	Equal	✓ No X Y	
Person Full Name*	Equal	✓ Aguilar Octavio × Q	
Skill Name*		✓ Driving (+1 et. Q. ♥)	
Show Manager's Data	Equal	Select]
		Yes No CANCEL SAVE AND RUN RUN	

Figure 28: Show Manager Data filter

When these shared reports (using the **Include Manager's Own Data** option) are executed in the manager's context (from the My Team menu):

- If the report has mandatory filters without values then as usual, the filter input screen is shown where you can set the values for filters along with an additional non-mandatory filter called **Show Manager's data** [Yes/No] with the default value set to **No**.
- If the report has mandatory filters with values then as usual, report is executed along with an additional non-mandatory filter called **Show Manager's data** [Yes/No] with the default value set to **No**.

Note: When the **Show Manager's data** filter is used with **Save and run**, it is saved as a report preference.

Data of the following manager types is not supported:

- Alternate Managers
- Org Managers
- Position Managers

For dashboard charts, the charts are executed based on the saved preference for the reports.

'Run Once' option for Schedule creators & editors

Prior to this update, the scheduled reports provided the **Run once** option only to those users who had access rights to edit a report.

In this update, users who can't edit a report but can schedule a report or edit a schedule are now also able to see and select the **Run once** option of a schedule.

Note: Users who cannot edit a schedule do not have the Run once option.



Figure 29: Run once option

Option to stop filter suggestions

Prior to this update, when building reports Saba Analytics would automatically add filters to the report depending on the dimension and metrics you pull into your report design. At times, the count of suggested filters can become overwhelming.

In this update, you are now provided an icon to stop the filter suggestions on the report building page.

Note: You can choose to see suggestions anytime by clicking the flash or lightning bolt icon.

By default, this feature is disabled. To enable the feature, submit a support request. For assistance, contact Saba support.

Filters (1/12)	T ?	F 77	\$	
	Sto	op Filter S	uggestion	
	o search	ર :		
•••				

Figure 30: Toggle button

This icon on the report building page is disabled by default. This change does not impact existing reports with existing filters.

Note: Not using the suggested filters could have a performance impact on report execution. Unless you are well informed about reporting and filters, avoid using this feature. During the report creation, you can stop and start filter suggestions as required.

Restrict proxy users from accessing Talent data

Prior to this update, the proxy users were able to access the restricted talent data which they should not have access to.

In this update, Analytics now honors the system privileges under **System > Manage Security** such that restricted talent data is not visible to proxy users:

- System component > Allow viewing sensitive data in Proxy mode
- Proxy Visibility component > Proxy user can access Talent

For more details about how to turn off the visibility of Talent data refer to **Turn off visibility to goals, skills, reviews, or talent data for proxy logins** help topic under **Configuration > Security Roles and Domains > Security Roles**.

New Attributes

Additional attributes that now show time as per the time format

In this update, the following attributes are modified to now show time as per the time format set in logged in user's locale settings.

Note: Time value shown in the listed time attributes do not change as per the logged in user's timezone. It reflects the time value stored in the database using either the DB server's timezone or the creator's timezone which varies depending upon the component.

Entity Name	Attribute Name			
Person Audit Details	Person Audit Created Date			
Held Checklist Audit Details	Held Checklist Audit Created Date			
Certification Audit Details	Certification Audit Created Date			
Learner Certification Audit Details	Student Certification Audit Created Date			
Content Audit Details	Content Inventory Audit Created Date			
Registration Audit Details	Registration Audit Created Date			
Class Audit Details	Class Audit Created On			
Transcript Audit Details	Transcript Audit Created Date			
Plan Cycle Audit Details	Plan Cycle Audit Created Date			
Review Cycle Audit Details	Review Cycle Audit Created On			
Review Audit Details	Review Audit Created On			
Goal Progress Audit Details	Goal Progress Audit Created Date			
Curricula Audit Details	Curricula Audit Created Date			
Learner Curricula Audit De- tails	Student Curricula Audit Created Date			
Course Audit Details	Course Audit Created Date			

Table 3: Attribute Details

Learning

This section describes the attributes that have been added under the Learning reports model in Saba Cloud.

Table 4: Learning Details

Entity Name	Attribute Name	Attribute Type	Available in Dashboard	Description
Content De- tails	Subscrip- tion Name	Dimension	No	Subscription ID for CCA content
Content De- tails	Subscrip- tion ID	Dimension	No	Subscription name for CCA content
Content De- tails Cata- log	Subscrip- tion Name	Dimension	No	Subscription ID for CCA content
Content De- tails Cata- log	Subscrip- tion ID	Dimension	No	Subscription name for CCA content
Learning Record Store	Resource Folder	Dimension	No	Folder name of the social resource
Learning Record Store	Resource Shared In Group	Dimension	No	Group name in which the resource is shared

Users can now pull these new attributes (Dimensions or Metrics) while creating or updating the Analytics reports.

Self-Directed Learning

This section describes the attributes that have been added under the Self-Directed Learning reports model in Saba Cloud.

Table 5: Self-Directed Learning Details

Entity Name	Attribute Name	Attribute Type	Available in Dashboard	Description
Learning Record Store	Resource Folder	Dimension	No	Folder name of the social resource
Learning Record Store	Resource Shared In Group	Dimension	No	Group name in which the resource is shared

Users can now pull these new attributes (Dimensions or Metrics) while creating or updating the Analytics reports.

Social

This section describes the attributes that have been added under the Social reports model in Saba Cloud.

Table 6: Social Details

Entity Name	Attribute Name	Attribute Type	Available in Dashboard	Description
Blogs/Work- space/Chan- nelVideo	Blogpost In- ternal Id	Dimension	No	Internal ID of blogpost
Blogs/Work- space/Chan- nelVideo	Page Intern- al Id	Dimension	No	Internal ID of page
Blogs/Work- space/Chan- nelVideo	Workspace Shared By	Dimension	No	Full name of the user who shared the Workspace
Blogs/Work- space/Chan- nelVideo	Page Shared By	Dimension	No	Full name of the user who shared the Page
Blogs/Work- space/Chan- nelVideo	Page Shared With Group	Dimension	No	Page shared with this group

Entity Name	Attribute Name	Attribute Type	Available in Dashboard	Description
Blogs/Work- space/Chan- nelVideo	Blog Shared By	Dimension	No	Full name of the user who shared the Blog
Blogs/Work- space/Chan- nelVideo	Blog Shared With Group	Dimension	No	Blog shared with this group
Blogs/Work- space/Chan- nelVideo	Blogpost Shared By	Dimension	No	Full name of the user who shared the Blogpost
Blogs/Work- space/Chan- nelVideo	BlogPost Shared With Group	Dimension	No	Blogpost shared with this group
Blogs/Work- space/Chan- nelVideo	Blog/Work- space Rat- ing Value	Dimension	No	Rating given to Blog/Workspace
Blogs/Work- space/Chan- nelVideo	Blog/Work- space Ac- tion By	Dimension	No	Rating or other feedback on Blog/Workspace given by
Blogs/Work- space/Chan- nelVideo	Blog/Work- space Ac- tion On	Dimension	No	Latest date on which rating or other feedback on Blog/Workspace was given
Blogs/Work- space/Chan- nelVideo	Blog- post/Page/Vdeo Rating Value	Dimension	No	Rating given to Blogpost/Page/Video
Blogs/Work- space/Chan- nelVideo	Blog- post/Page/Vdeo Action By	Dimension	No	Rating or other feedback on Blog- post/Page/Video given by
Blogs/Work- space/Chan- nelVideo	Blog- post/Page/Vdeo Action On	Dimension	No	Latest date on which the rating or other feedback on Blog- post/Page/Video was given
Discussions	Discussion Internal Id	Dimension	No	Internal ID of discussion

Entity Name	Attribute Name	Attribute Type	Available in Dashboard	Description
File/URL/Video	Resource Shared With Group	Dimension	No	Resource Shared With Group
File/URL/Video	File/URL/Video Rating Value	Dimension	No	Rating given to File/URL/Video
File/URL/Video	File/URL/Video Action By	Dimension	No	Rating or other feedback on File/URL/Video given by
File/URL/Video	File/URL/Video Action On	Dimension	No	Latest date on which rating or other feedback on File/URL/Video was given
Groups	Total Views By Group Member	Metric	No	Total number of views by the group member
Groups	Total Down- loads By Group Mem- ber	Metric	No	Total number of workspace content downloads by the group member
Groups	Total Votes By Group Member	Metric	No	Total number of votes by the group member
Groups	Total Com- ments By Group Mem- ber	Metric	No	Total number of comments by the group member
Groups	Total Rat- ings By Group Mem- ber	Metric	No	Total number of ratings by the group member
Groups	Group Shared By	Dimension	No	Full name of the user who shared the Group
Groups	Group Shared With Group	Dimension	No	Group shared with this group

Entity Name	Attribute Name	Attribute Type	Available in Dashboard	Description
Groups	Member Joined On	Dimension	No	Date on which the member joined the group
Groups	Member Last Activ- ity Date	Dimension	No	Last date on which the group mem- ber has performed any activity
Groups	Member Last View Date	Dimension	No	Last date on which the group mem- ber has viewed the group resources
Groups	Member Last Down- load Date	Dimension	No	Last date on which the group mem- ber has downloaded the workspace content in the group
Groups	Member Last Vote Date	Dimension	No	Last date on which the group mem- ber has voted for group resources
Groups	Member Last Com- ment Date	Dimension	No	Last date on which the group mem- ber has commented in the group
Groups	Member Last Rating Date	Dimension	No	Last date on which the group mem- ber has given ratings for group re- sources
Groups	Member Last Reply To Discus- sion Date	Dimension	No	Last date on which the group mem- ber has replied on discussion in the group
Groups	Total Files Added To Group	Metric	No	Total number of files added to the group
Groups	Total URLs Added To Group	Metric	No	Total number of URLs added to the group
Groups	Total Video Added To Group	Metric	No	Total number of videos added to the group

Entity Name	Attribute Name	Attribute Type	Available in Dashboard	Description
Groups	Total Ideas Added To Group	Metric	No	Total number of ideas added to the group
Groups	Total Issues Added To Group	Metric	No	Total number of issues added to the group
lssues	Issue Intern- al Id	Dimension	No	Internal ID of issue
lssues	lssue Shared By	Dimension	No	Full name of user who shared the Is- sue
Issues	lssue Shared With Group	Dimension	No	Issue shared with this group
Impressions	Impression Submitter Domain	Dimension	No	Domain name of person who gives the impression

Users can now pull these new attributes (Dimensions or Metrics) while creating or updating the Analytics reports.

Performance

This section describes the attributes that have been added under the Performance reports model in Saba Cloud.

Table 7: Performance Details

Entity Name	Attribute Name	Attribute Type	Available in Dashboard	Description
Review Sec- tion	Overwritten Section Rat- ing Value	Dimension	No	Overwritten value for the section rating before the review is submitted
Review Sec- tion	Overwritten Section Rat- ing Level	Dimension	No	Overwritten level for the section rat- ing before the review is submitted

Users can now pull these new attributes (Dimensions or Metrics) while creating or updating the Analytics reports.

Rewards

This section describes the attributes that have been added under the Rewards reports model in Saba Cloud.

Table 8: Rewards Details

Entity Name	Attribute Name	Attribute Type	Available in Dashboard	Description
Rewards Ordered	Reward Or- der Number	ard Or- Dimension No Number		Order number created by using re- ward points
Rewards Ordered	Reward Status	Dimension	No	Status of the order created by using reward points
Rewards	Reward Number	Dimension	No	Reward name
Rewards	Reward Name	Dimension	No	Reward number

Users can now pull these new attributes (Dimensions or Metrics) while creating or updating the Analytics reports.

System

This section describes the attributes that have been added under the System reports model in Saba Cloud.

Table 9: System Details

Entity Name	Attribute Name	Attribute Type	Available in Dashboard	Description
Rapid Data Import	Start Date	Dimension	No	Start date of data import
Rapid Data Import	End Date	Dimension	No	End date of data import
Rapid Data Import	Modified Date	Dimension	No	Data import modified on

Entity Name	Attribute Name	Attribute Type	Available in Dashboard	Description
Rapid Data Import	Input File	Dimension	No	Name of input file for data import
Rapid Data Import	Import Ob- ject	Dimension	No	Data object to be imported
Rapid Data Import	Status	Dimension	No	Data import process status
Rapid Data Import	Error Mes- sage	Dimension	No	Error message from data import
Rapid Data Import	Source	Dimension	No	Data source
Rapid Data Import	Import Initi- ated By Username	Dimension	No	Username of data import initiator
Rapid Data Import	Import Initi- ated By Full- name	Dimension	No	Fullname of data import initiator
Rapid Data Import	SMF Job Id	Dimension	No	Identifier of SMF Job
Rapid Data Import	Retried	Dimension	No	Data import to be retried
Rapid Data Import	Processed Records Count	Dimension	No	Count of records processed by data import
Rapid Data Import	Inserted Re- cords Count	Dimension	No	Count of records inserted by data import
Rapid Data Import	Updated Re- cords Count	Dimension	No	Count of records updated by data import

Entity Name	Attribute Name	Attribute Type	Available in Dashboard	Description
Rapid Data Import	Failed Re- cords Count	Dimension	No	Count of records failed during data import
Rapid Data Import	vata Warning Re- Dimension No Cou cords Count		Count of records resulted in warning during data import	
Rapid Data Import	Prepro- cessed Re- cords Count	Dimension	No	Count of records preprocessed by data import
Rapid Data Import	Rapid Data Successful mport Preprocess Records Count		No	Count of records successfully prepro- cessed during data import
Rapid Data Import	Failed Pre- process Re- cords Count	Dimension	No	Count of records failed preprocessing during data import
Rapid Data Import	Associ- ations Count	Dimension	No	Count of associations found during data import
Rapid Data Import	Prepro- cessed As- sociations Count	Dimension	No	Count of associations preprocessed during data import
Rapid Data Import	Using SFTP	Dimension	No	Data import using SFTP
Rapid Data Import	Processed Records Count	Metric	No	Count of records processed by data import
Rapid Data Import	Inserted Re- cords Count	Metric	No	Count of records inserted by data import

Entity Name	Attribute Name	Attribute Type	Available in Dashboard	Description
Rapid Data Import	Updated Re- cords Count	Metric	No	Count of records updated by data import
Rapid Data Import	Failed Re- cords Count	Metric	No	Count of records failed during data import
Rapid Data Import	Warning Re- cords Count	Re- Metric No Count of rec during data		Count of records resulted in warning during data import
Rapid Data Import	Prepro- cessed Re- cords Count	Metric	No	Count of records preprocessed by data import
Rapid Data Import	Successful Preprocess Records Count	Metric	No	Count of records successfully prepro- cessed during data import
Rapid Data Import	Failed Pre- process Re- cords Count	Metric	No	Count of records failed preprocessing during data import
Rapid Data Import	Associ- ations Count	Metric	No	Count of associations found during data import
Rapid Data Import	Prepro- cessed As- sociations Count	Metric	No	Count of associations preprocessed during data import

Users can now pull these new attributes (Dimensions / Metrics) while creating or updating the Analytics reports.

Talent

This section describes the attributes that have been added under the Talent reports model in Saba Cloud.

Table 10: Talent Details

Entity	Attribute	Attribute	Available in	Description
Name	Name	Type	Dashboard	
Talent Pool	Internal Job Start Date	Dimension	No	Start date of latest internal job of talent pool candidate

Users can now pull these new attributes (Dimensions / Metrics) while creating or updating the Analytics reports.

Updates to Insights

In this update, the **What is the compliance status of my team?** Insight is now renamed to **What is the learning completion status of my team?**.

Updated Reports

Compliance Status Report

Prior to this update, the Compliance Status Report didn't return courses having multiple class.

In this update, the following new dimensions are added to the Compliance Status Report:

- **Class ID** to retrieve courses having multiple classes.
- Person Domain to visualize the data per domain for your management

Updates to Insight reports

In this update, the following reports are renamed.

Table 11: Updated report details

Old name	New name
Insight - Learning Compliance for Certification	Insight - Learning Completion for Certification
Insight - Learning Compliance for Courses	Insight - Learning Completion for Courses
Insight - Learning Compliance for Curricula	Insight - Learning Completion for Curricula

Compensation

Topics:

• New option to add multiple comments to the memo field

This section includes the following topic that will guide you through the new features and improvements under Compensation.

New option to add multiple comments to the memo field

Prior to this update, it was not possible to add multiple comments in the memo fields on the Compensation Worksheet.

In this update, memo fields on the Worksheets provide the option to add multiple comments. You can add up to 1020 characters for each entry in the memo field comment and you can place a memo field anywhere on a worksheet adjacent to the field that it refers to.

Display: 🔽 Base Salary	00	ADVA	VCED SEARCH	CLEAR	SEARCH Savi	ing is done autor	matically.					
USD PLAN CURRENCY	AVG. I	0.52 BASE SALARY CREASE %	FUND	3,149 IS ASSIGNED	327 FUNDS ALLC	CATED	2,822 FUNDS AVAILABLE	۲				
EMPLOYEES		BASE SA MA MID	CURRENT COMPA RATIO	GUIDELINE INCREASE %	GUIDELINE INCREASE AMOUNT	BASE SALARY - NEW	BASE SALARY - INCREASE	MEMO FOR SALARY INCREASE	BASE SALARY - INCREASE %	MEMO FOR QUARTERLY INCREASE	NEW COMPA RATIO	COMME
Sørensen Håkon Finance Job Title		0.00	0.00	0.00%	0.00	580,800.00	3,000.00	P	0.52%	P	0.00	•

Figure 31: Worksheet with memo field comments

You can edit or delete your comments as needed.

N	16MO FOR SALARY INCREASE	×		
Enter text here		SAVE		
0.52 BASE SALARY	0 / 1020	Multiple		
NCREASE %	Please review and process this by January 15 2022 Created By: ShradhaP ShradhaP Last Updated On: 08/06/2021 12:47 AM	comments added		
ASE CURREN A COMPA MA RATIO	A base salary increase of \$ 3000 has been granted. Created By: ShradhaP ShradhaP Last Updated On: 08/06/2021 12:47 AM		NEW COMPA RATIO	
4			0.00	

Figure 32: Memo text added

Ecommerce

Topics:

 Ability to cancel an order if refund is processed by a payment gateway This section includes the following topics that will guide you through the new features and improvements under Ecommerce.

Ability to cancel an order if refund is processed by a payment gateway

Prior to this update, when payments were refunded by the payment gateway such as Stripe, the corresponding orders in Saba Cloud used to generate errors when the Registrar tried to cancel them. So, such orders could not be cancelled from Saba Cloud.

In this update, Saba Cloud now allows Registrars to cancel orders where the payments are already refunded by the payment gateway.

To cancel an order, click **Admin > Learning > Registrar Desktop > Order History**, search for the required order and click order number. Then click the **Order Status** link and select **Cancelled** in the popup page.

Chapter 5

HR

Topics:

Skill redesign

This section includes the following topics that will guide you through the new features and improvements under HR.

Skill redesign

In this update, skill details and assessing skills have a new look and feel. You can:

- avoid creating multiple pending self-assessments for a single skill
- see the approval or rejection comments entered by approvers for skill self-assessments
- see details about the skill when adding one, including any learning associated with the skill

Note: The skill redesign works in different screen resolutions and is fully accessible.

To enable the new skill design, navigate to Admin > System > Configure System > Microsites > Site Properties > Performance-related configurations and ensure the Launch Skills in New User Interface is set to 'true'. By default, this setting is set to 'false'. When configured to 'true', everyone sees this new design any time they work with skills.

To see the new skill design, navigate to **Me > Skills Development** and click the title of a skill. Here is an example of the new skill redesign and skill assessment redesign.

New look and feel	C Back Results Oriented Pat Rose VP Operations Advanced 4 Current level 4 Required level 5 Maximum level
Shows what factors influence the required level. In this case, the job description requires this skill.	All required level
Click to perform a self- assessment.	Demonstrates an ability to set goals and achieve them in a predictable and measurable manner. ASSESS NOW

Skill redesign

Figure 33: Skill redesign

Assessment Alert
You already have a pending self-assessment. Do you want to cancel this assessment and assess this skill again?
NO YES

One self-assessment at a time - If you already have started a self-assessment, you can no longer start a new one for the same skill.

Note: Only the latest assessment given by the currently logged-in user is shown. For example, if employee A reports to direct manager B and second-level manager C, then this is what they can and cannot see:

- employee A would only see the latest self-assessment they gave (and not the direct manager B or the second-level manager C)
- direct manager B would only see the latest assessment they gave (and not the one by employee A or the one by second-level manager C)
- second-level manager C would only see the latest assessment they gave (and not the one given by employee A or manager B)

12-AUG-2021 Pending Approval				
🐊 🦃 Approvers				
Advanced		Approved		
Aaron Good Customer Service Director Overall, I think you are above average in this skill and	4 are working towards advanced level.	12-AUG-2021	The e mana self-a adds a visible	mployee's ger approves the ssessment and a comment that is a to the employee.
MESSAGE CENTER	VIEW: UNREAD ~			The approver is notified
NEW PRIVATE MESSAGE	Select All	DELETE MARK AS ssessment of Adaptability	READ	that they need to approve the skill self-
Notifications (4)	1 minute ago Mark as read • Approve • Reject			Message Center.

Approval and rejection comments are visible to employee - As the approvers add their comments to the skill self-assessment, the employee sees the comments, including comments about why it was approved or rejected. Approvers can see if they need to approve a skill self-assessment from the Message Center.

< Back Assign	Skill	S	Leadership 1 - Needs Improvement Doplays basic or is inveloped to fuglicit area, requires basic understandi learning interventions and coaching in this area to contribute in this field.	×
	*	Agile Leadership (Skills Graph) S Proficiency levels	2 - Below Average Displays some knowledge of subject area, requires coaching in this area to contribute in this field.	ł
	*	Leadership Groupit Strategic Skills 9 Behavioral Indicators 5 Proficiency levels	3 - Average	
	*	Leadership Groups: Manager S Proficiency levels	Displays average knowledge of subject area which enables individual to contribute adequately in this area.	.
	*	Leadership Impact Groups: Review Input 4 Proficiency levels	4 - Advanced Displays above average knowledge of subject area and is looked upon as a mentor and an above average performer in this field.	
			5 - Expert Displays excellent involvedge of subject area and is looked upon as an exp in this field. Recommended learnings	ert

View details about a skill when adding one - When adding a skill, you can click the title of the skill to see more details.



View learning recommendations for skills. Learning recommendations may be associated with a proficiency level.

Chapter

6

Learning

Topics:

- Assessment
- Content
- Enhanced Course and Class Details Pages
- Learning Activity
- Redesigned Certification
 and Curriculum Detail Pages

This section includes topics to guide you through new features and improvements under Learning.

Assessment

Support unique questions in subsets for dynamic folders

Prior to this update, Saba Cloud allowed repetition of questions for tests with associated dynamic question pool.

This update provides support to display unique questions from subsets for dynamic folders associated with tests.

Note: This feature is enabled by default. To disable this feature, submit a request. For more details, contact Support.

Questions are considered as new or existing versions as follows:

- Any new questions added to the dynamic folder is considered as a new question.
- Any published question in dynamic folder that is versioned is considered as a new question in subset uniqueness logic.
- Any question that is moved from one dynamic folder to another dynamic folder of the test, and already attempted by a user once prior to move, is not considered as a new unique question in the new folder.
- Any question that is moved out of an existing dynamic folder is not considered by the unique subset logic.
- Any new question (unattempted as part of any other existing dynamic folder in the same test) that is moved into a dynamic folder is considered as a new question by the uniqueness logic.

When the feature is enabled, and if users attempt a test where randomization and subset properties are enabled, they now see unique questions in subsequent launches. There is no repetition of questions.

This is applicable to both Learning and Recruiting tests.

Support for sequencing questions in a question pool

Prior to this update, Saba Cloud did not allow Assessment Administrators to specify the sequence of questions in a test or survey question pool. By default, the questions imported into the question pool folder were sorted by their 'Updated On' value, where the latest created or updated question appeared on top of the list in the question pool folder. So, the administrators had to reorder the questions manually after importing the question pool into the test, survey, or evaluation.

This update allows Assessment Administrators to change the sequence of questions in the test or survey question pool itself. This enhances usability and prevents the additional task of sequencing the questions manually after importing them into a test or survey.

Note: This feature is available for Learning, Recruiting, and Pulse 360 questions.

To reorder questions in a question pool folder, click the new **Reorder Questions** action from the **Action** menu.

N	EW QUESTION ~ ACTIONS A
STATUS	Move Questions
514105	Copy Questions
Published	Publish Questions
Published	Archive Questions
Published	Import Questions into Pool
Published	Download Excel Template
Published	Export Question(s) for Translation
Published	Import Question Translations
Published	Reorder Questions
Published	2020-04-23 ACTIONS ~

Figure 34: Reorder Questions action

The **Reorder Questions** popup page opens. You can drag a question from one position to another to change its sequence in the list.

REORDER QUESTIONS	×
DRAG A QUESTION TO CHANGE ITS ORDER	
🔅 Will Compiler creates a default no argument constructor if we specify only multi a	
$ \diamondsuit$ Can we have multiple servlets in a web application and How can we do that ?	
Can we declare interface methods as private ?	
Is runnable a Marker interface?	
$\$ Can we reduce the visibility of the inherited or overridden method	
Can we override static methods ?	
\$\overline\$ can we create a null as a key for a map collection ?	
Can constructors be synchronized in Java ?	
Does Java provides default copy constructor ?	
$\ensuremath{\widehat{\updownarrow}}$ Can we reduce the visibility of the overridden method in Java?	
CLOSE	

Figure 35: Reorder Questions popup

The new sequence of questions is retained when you import the question pool folder into a test or survey.

When new questions are added to the question pool, they appear on the top of the list based on their 'Updated On' value.

Note: You can still override the sequence of questions at the individual test or survey level.

New assessor approval notification event

Prior to this update, Saba Cloud sent the assessor approval notification only to the Message Center of the assessor. There was no support to send an email notification for the same.

This update now supports the ability to send an approval email notification to the assessor's email address.

System Administrators can configure the following new notification event under the **Advanced Assessment** service:

Table 12: New notification event

Event Name	Description	Туре
Send notification to the as- sessor	Triggered when a user submits a test, and sends an email to assessors for evaluation. By default, the event is disabled.	Triggered

To support the new event, this update introduces the following new keywords:

- @TestAssessor_Learner_name@
- @TestAssessor_Assessment_name@
- @TestAssessor_Submitted_date@

To configure the notification event, click **Admin > System > Configure System > Services > Foundation > Saba Assessment > Advanced Assessment**.

When this event is configured and enabled, Saba Cloud triggers the notification when a user submits a test and sends an email to all designated assessors.

Note: This email is in addition to the existing Message Center notification.

Content

Restrict transfer of personal information during content communication

This update further strengthens data privacy during content communication between Saba Cloud and third-party content vendors so that certain sensitive user information is not shared with the vendors during content launch.

Content Administrators can now configure the following new field for a content vendor:

• Restrict transfer of Personal Identifiable Information (PII)

If this check box is selected, then it ensures that user data identified as Personal Identifiable Information (PII) is not transferred from Saba Cloud to the content vendor during content communication between the two.

The following PII fields are not transferred:

- First name
- Last name
- Username
- Email
- Student demographic fields (City, Company, Country, Familiar name, Job title, State, Street address, and Telephone)

To configure the check box, click **Admin > Learning > Manage Content > Content Vendors**, and find and edit the required vendor.

Vendor Integration Mode	I	
Vendor Type		
Access URL*	https://	TEST URL
Restrict transfer of Personal Id	lentifiable Information (PII)	
Other Information		
Custom0		
Custom1		

Figure 36: Restrict transfer of Personal Identifiable Information (PII) check box

Supported content vendors

This feature is available to all supported content vendor types, except LAB.

Important: If the **Restrict transfer of Personal Identifiable Information (PII)** check box is enabled, then the content cannot launch for the following vendors:

- · LinkedIn Learning only when LTI authentication is enabled
- Harvard ManageMentor

Supported content formats

This feature is available to the following content formats:

- AICC
- SCORM 1.2
- SCORM 2004
- Tin Can
- URL (externally marked completed like Udemy, LinkedIn Learning)
- · COIN
- LTI
- Panopto

Enhancements to the Create Tool

This update introduces multiple enhancements to the integrated Create Tool in Saba Cloud.

Edit content in Create Tool

Content Administrators now get access to edit the content created using the Create Tool directly from the content details page in Saba Cloud.

Note: The Create Tool import is available only if the Create Tool connector is configured and enabled in Marketplace, and you have the 'Can Import from Create Tool' privilege.

Content Details	Current Subscriptions	Co	ntent Metadata
Edit Content in Create Tool Preview Content View Results			
Name*	New Content		
Security Domain*	world	Q	€
Content Format	AICC		
Content Provider	Create Tool	~	
Content Format Version			
Player Template *	New Window Standard Template	Q	€
Mobile Device Compatibility	All Devices	~	0

Figure 37: Edit Content in Create Tool

To edit content created using the Create Tool, open the content details page and click the new **Edit Content in Create Tool** link. The content opens in the Create Tool interface in edit mode.

Once you save the changes, you can either continue with the edits or click the **Go to Course Console** button in the tool to directly navigate to the **Content Inventory Details** page for that content in Saba Cloud.



Figure 38: Screen after editing the content

Auto-publish content in courses after publishing the content

Prior to this update, for any changes to the content created or edited using the Create Tool, administrators had to manually save and publish the content in courses where the content was associated.

Now, when Content Administrators import or edit a content using the Create Tool and publish it in Saba Cloud, it is no longer required to manually publish the content in courses where the content is associated. The content changes are automatically saved and published in the courses.

Retain logged-in user's locale in Create Tool

Prior to this update, when importing or editing content in Saba Cloud using the Create Tool, administrators were seamlessly logged in from Saba Cloud to Create Tool. However, they landed on the English locale of the Create Tool instead of the logged-in user's locale.

In this update, when Content Administrators try to import or edit a content using the Create Tool in Saba Cloud, they are seamlessly logged in to the Create Tool in the logged-in user's default locale or the user's preferred locale.

Content sign-off for content launched using API-based launch URL

Prior to this update, while closing the content that was launched using the API-based launch URL, Saba Cloud did not display any content sign-off popup page as the content was launched in the Classic player.

This update provides the ability to display content sign-off popup page while closing the content that is launched using the API-based launch URL, by allowing the content to be launched in the Modern player.

System Administrators can configure the following new **Content** site property:

New API-based Launch URL

If this property is set to 'true', then the new API-based launch URL is available. This launches content in the Modern Player if the player is enabled. This ensure that the content sign-off popup page is displayed while closing the content.

The default value is 'false'.

Changes to content fields

Prior to this update, the **Owner** and **Category** sections were displayed under the **Content Details** tab for content.

With this update, the **Owner** and **Category** sections have been moved to the **Content Metadata** tab for content.

Note: The **Category** section is displayed only if the imported content is from Saba, OpenSesame, or LinkedIn content vendor, or is a me:time content.
Content Details	Current Subscriptions	Content Metadata
Content Format	SCORM Package	
Content Type	Online Learning	
Owner		Add Owner
No items found		
Category		Add Category
No items found		
	SAVE RETURN TO	REPOSITORY CANCEL

Figure 39: Content Metadata tab

There are no changes to their functionality, though.

Enhanced Course and Class Details Pages

Usability enhancements to the enhanced course and class detail pages

This update enhances the usability and look-and-feel of the enhanced course and class detail pages for end users and managers, so that they are in line with the newly introduced redesigned certification and curricula detail pages and follow a consistent design paradigm.

The page design of the enhanced course and class detail pages has been improved as follows:

- The left navigation panel has been completely removed. The pages now display a leaner center-aligned interface, which is suitable for easy viewing and scrolling.
- The page header has been slightly redesigned to improve the placement of various actions, icons, and textual details, so that it allows easy readability of important information.
- The sections are now neatly categorized into the following tabs for quick access.
 - Progress and Activities
 - Overview & Other Information
 - History

Course ID: 0000045213 Java Programming Bootcamp 2021 - Build Real Projects! Q < : Successful Completed on: 2021-09-29					
Progress and Activities	Overview & Other Information	History			
English Web-Based Class ID: JP BOOTC. Class will discontinue on: 2021-10-30 Total duration: 01:00 Hrs CPF: No Score: 100 This is the Web-Based Version of the c Learn Java Programming from scratc	AMP2021-WB1 ourse and you can complete the class by con h to advance to clear concepts Java for Co	10 USD LEGACY VIEW mpleting all the activities at your pace. mplete Beginners to Advance			

Figure 40: Redesigned course details page - With all 3 tabs

You may not see all tabs or all sections for every course or class. The availability of a tab or a section depends on your course or class and the status it is in. If you have not registered for the course of if there is no course progress or history, then no tabs are displayed. Similarly, if there is no progress history for a course, then the **History** tab is not displayed.

	Course ID: 0000045213 Java Programming Bootcar Not Registered	np 2021 - Build Real Projects! SEE CLASSE	S TO ENROLL
Overview			
Learn Java Programming from scratch	to advance to clear concepts Ja	ava for Complete Beginners to Adva	ance
 What you'll learn Learn the Java core skills that a Java developed You will be able to mention your Java programm Learn the latest version of the Java right now Able to easily switch to Java Android developm Able to write clean & generic Java program 	r must need ming skills on his CV. ent or Java EE within no time Show More		
 Skills Associated 			
Available Classes (2) ▼ Filters ▼			
English Web-Based Class ID: JP BOOTCA	MP2021-WB1		10 USD
Class will discontinue on: 2021-10-30			
Total duration: 01:00 Hrs Cancellation policy d	loes not exist		
CPF: No			
This is the Web-Based Version of the co Learn Java Programming from scratch	ourse and you can complete the cli h to advance to clear concepts Ja	ass by completing all the activities at wa for Complete Beginners to Advanc	your pace. ce

Figure 41: Redesigned course details page - Without tabs

- For recurring courses, various dates are now shifted from the header to the **Overview** section. Only the date that is relevant for a recurring course status is displayed in the header now. For example, when a recurring course is acquired, only its Reacquisition Starts On date is displayed in the header, while other dates like Expiration Date and Grace Period Ends On date are displayed only in the **Overview** section.
- The CE Credits Summary section has been removed. Now, you can find all relevant details that were displayed in that section such as Maximum credits allowed for each FOS, CE Credit history, and so on, in the Complete and Earn and Achievements sections. Clicking the View History link displays the CE credits history in a popup page, which includes a summary of credits earned per FOS and other details.

Achievements		
Rewards Total points earned: 220		< Previous Next > View History
Learning Badge1 120 Points Learning Badge1	Learning Badge2 no points	Learning Badge3 100 Points
Continuing Education Credits Total CE Credits earne	d: 1286.57	< Previous Next > View History
Default Field of Study 0 Credits /Max allowed: 0 Default field of study	CE_FOS1 1234.89 /Max allowed: Credits 1234.89	CE_FOS2 15.89 Credits /Max allowed: 15.89
	• •	

Figure 42: CE credits in Achievements section

Session-based classes now sorted by session time on the enhanced course page

Prior to this update, if the **Prefer Learner Location-Based Class Suggestion** setting was disabled, then the session-based classes were sorted based on their start date in the **Available Classes** section of the enhanced course details page. However, the session start time was not considered to decide the sorting order of such classes.

This update enhances the sorting logic of classes on the **Available Classes** section of the enhanced course details page. Now, if the **Prefer Learner Location-Based Class Suggestion** setting is disabled, then the session-based classes are sorted and displayed based on their start date as well as the session start time.

Session-based classes are now sorted as follows:

- 1. Start date
- 2. Session start time
- **3.** Location (A-Z)
- 4. Delivery name (A-Z)
- 5. Class part number (A-Z)

If the **Prefer Learner Location-Based Class Suggestion** setting is enabled, then all the Virtual Classrooms in any location appear first along with other classes sorted by their start date.

The sorting order for WBT classes on the **Available Classes** section remains unaffected by this change.

Note: Currently, the sorting order for start date and session start time works as per class location time zone only. Learner location time zone sorting is not supported yet.

New filter to show classes with at least one available seat

Prior to this update, there was no option to filter out session-based classes based on the availability of seats from the enhanced course details page.

In this update, Saba Cloud introduces a new filter called **Show classes with at least 1 available seat** under **Filters** in the **Available Classes** section of the enhanced course details page.

By default, this filter is disabled.

When you enable and apply this filter, the **Available Classes** section displays only those session-based classes with at least 1 confirmed seat along with the already registered classes and self-paced classes of that course.

unguuge	L	ocation		Available from		Delivery Type	
Type to search	م	Type to search	Q	select	ė	Delivery Type	C
Show classes with at le	east 1 av	ailable seat					
					CLEA	R FILTERS APPLY	FILTERS
16-APR-2021 - 22-APR-	2021						0 USD
Session Details: 18-APR-20	21 9:1	5 PM - 9:30 PM (IST)	+3 Others				
English Blended Clas	ss ID: SC	OURSE_BLENDED_VC_A	DOBE (In Progress			
• Pune							
Total duration: 01:00 Hrs	Check	cancellation policy					
53 seats available 5 Waitl	ist availa	ble					
No Instructor Class							

Figure 43: Show classes with at least 1 available seat

Learning Activity

New page to view actions performed after course discontinuation

Prior to this update, Learning Administrators could view error details of all discontinued courses using the **Discontinued Course Errors** menu and page under **Manage Learning Catalog**.

This update introduces the **Post Course Discontinue Activity** menu and page, which allows Learning Administrators to find and view details about discontinued courses and actions performed on such courses after discontinuation.

Note: This page displays only those discontinued courses on which at least one from the Remove from plan, Drop registrations, and Cancel class action were taken.

To view the new page, click **Admin > Learning > Manage Learning Catalog > Post Course Discontinue Activity**.

Post Course Discontinue Activity							
This page provides details on actions will be shown.	s performed after co	urse discontinuation	. Only courses ti	hat had at least one (of the options (Rem	ove from plan, drop registrat	tions, cancel cla
Processed After >=		Processed B	efore <=				
Course Title		Course ID					
Configure Save Search Query				SE	ARCH		
							123
Search Results						Prir	nt Export
Title	Course ID	Discontinued Date	Processed On	Remove from Plan	Drop Registration	Cancel/Discontinue Class	Actions
GBRC_TestingPostU47	0000033207		26-JUN-2020	Yes	No	No	Details
16July_RC15	16JULY_RC15		17-JUL-2020	Yes	Yes	No	Details
TestforDeeplinkURI	0000035073	13-AUG-2020	14-AUG-2020	No	No	Yes	Details
25Aug_Course2	25AUG_COURSE2	20-AUG-2020	26-AUG-2020	No	Yes	No	Details
GBRC_Versioning01	0000033953		29-JUL-2020	No	Yes	No	Details

Figure 44: Post Course Discontinue Activity page

You can search for the required courses using different criteria such as the processing dates, course title, and course ID. The search results display various details such as when the course was discontinued, when it was processed, and any of the following actions performed on the course after it was discontinued:

- Remove from plan
- Drop registrations
- Cancel/Discontinue class

To view more details about a discontinued course, click the **Details** link in the **Action** column for that course.

Complete Pro	ocessing De	etails			
This page shows details of registrations dropped and classes cancelled. Details about removal from plan are not shown					
umess mere was all e	nor when ternoving	n on pan.	Pri	nt Export	
Object	Course	Туре	Status	Error	
150ct_Wbt1	150ct_Wbt1	Cancel/Discontinue class	Successful		
Alpesh Patil	150ct_Wbt1	Remove Registration	Successful		
Keyur Patel	150ct_Wbt1	Remove Registration	Successful		
Rahul Kumar	150ct_Wbt1	Remove Registration	Successful		
Samreen Mulla	150ct_Wbt1	Remove Registration	Successful		
Souvik Dey	150ct_Wbt1	Remove Registration	Successful		

Figure 45: Complete Processing Details of a discontinued course

This page shows details of registrations dropped and classes cancelled. Details about classes that were removed from plan are not displayed unless there was an error when removing them from plan.

Note: The Discontinued Course Errors menu and page have been obsoleted.

Show or hide due date on the Assign Learning page

Prior to this update, the enhanced **Assign Learning > Register** page displayed a **Due Date** field that allowed managers and Registrars to set a due date for the learning item. However, there was no configuration option to hide this date field from the page.

This update makes the display of the **Due Date** field on the enhanced **Assign Learning > Register** page configurable.

System Administrators can now configure the following new setting to show or hide the **Due Date** field:

• Show Due Date in Assign Learning > Register page

By default, the setting is enabled.

When this setting is disabled, the **Due Date** field is not displayed on the **Assign Learning** > **Register** page for managers and Registrars.

To configure this setting, navigate to **Admin > System > Configure System > Services >** Learning > Catalog.

Note: This setting does not affect the **Add to Plan** and **Assign & Enroll** workflows of Assign Learning.

Set content folder in a course template

Prior to this update, the content added to the courses created using the simplified course creation workflow was added to a predefined content folder. Learning Administrators did not have the option of selecting a custom content folder for the content.

In this update, Learning Administrators can now set the desired content folder while creating or editing a course template using the following new field:

Content Folder

To set the content folder, navigate to **Admin > Learning > Manage Learning Catalog > Course Template**, search for the required template and click **Edit**.

In the **Content folder** field, type the name of the required folder. Matching folder names appear for selection. Select the required folder. You can also click the finder icon to browse through the available content folders in the content library. Save the template after selecting the folder.

This field is optional.

Addition	al Information			
Content	folder: Type	to search	Q	
Custom	details			
COU	RSE COMPONEI	NT		
VI	FIELD NAME	DEFAULT VALUE	REQUIR	ED
	Departme		NO	YES
~	Custom1		NO	YES

Figure 46: Content Folder field for course template

Once the folder is set at the course template level, any content added to courses based on this template is stored in the selected content folder.

If the content folder is not set for the course template, then the system default content folder is used to store the imported content.

Note: When you add a file content using the **Browse** button or using drag-and-drop from the **New Course** portlet, the content is not added to the folder that is selected in the Course Template at the time of creation of the course. To ensure that the file content is added to the selected content folder in the Course Template at the time of creation of the course, you must click the **Create New Course** on the portlet or through **Courses I Manage** page and then add the file content.

Enhancements to simplified courses

Prior to this update, in the simplified course creation workflow, Saba Cloud allowed addition and deletion of activities in sections only till the simplified course was in the draft state. Once the course was activated, the activities in the sections could not be added or removed from the course.

In this update, Saba Cloud now provides the ability to add new activities as well as disable existing ones in a simplified course when the course is in the *Active* state.

By default, only users who have access to any of the following roles can see these changes:

- Learning Admin Local Catalog Admin
- Learning Admin Catalog Builder

To make these changes to your active simplified course, find and edit the required course. For example, you can access the course from **Me > Courses I Manage**.

To disable an existing activity from a simplified course, click the **Enabled** slider. The slider changes to **Disabled**. To add a new activity to an *Active* course, either click the activity type button or drag the required activity type button from the left pane and drop it in the right pane in the **Activities** section and specify the required details.

CLASS OTHER INFORMATION							
Custom0							
Custom1							
ACTIVITIES							
File from Computer							
Tile from Library	CSS Fundamentals	Enabled 🌑					
⊕ Website Link	CSS Fundamentals Test	Disabled 💽					
Oreate New Test							
≔ Test from Library							
	Drag and Drop course activities here						
	L	······································					

Figure 47: New Enabled/Disabled slider for simplified course

Either click the **Save** button to save the changes without publishing them or click the **Save** and **Publish** button to publish the changes. The **Push Activities** popup opens. You can select one or more options and click **Save**. Saba Cloud publishes the course changes accordingly to learners registered to the course.

Notes:

- You cannot delete an activity after it is published for the course.
- You cannot make any changes to the course activities when save and publish is in-progress.
- When a course is already completed by a learner and the changes are published for such learners, then learners can attempt the newly-added learning items but the results will not be updated for them. This in turn, will not update the badges and point granted to them.

CANCEL SAVE
Registrations where the class is completed and moved to the completed course
Registrations where the class is In Progress
✓ Future Registrations
Push Activities

Figure 48: Save and Publish activity changes

Saba Cloud displays a message to indicate whether the changes were published successfully or if there was an error during the publishing process. In case of an error, try to save and publish the changes again.

When you save the changes without publishing them, the **See Published Version** button appears. Once you publish the changes successfully, the **See Published Version** button is not shown.

Drag and Drop course activities here	
	SEE PUBLISHED VERSION

Figure 49: See Published Version

Activity sections are no longer supported

Simplified courses no longer support 'sections' for activities. Now, you can directly add an activity to the **Activities** section.

Course owner-based restrictions on learning catalog

Prior to this update, there was no restriction for users to search, view, and manage courses and classes in the learning catalog even when they were not associated as the owner for those courses.

In this update, Saba Cloud adds support to restrict access to the learning catalog such that users can search, view, and manage courses and classes in the catalog only if they are the owners of those courses. By default, there is no restriction to access learning catalog.

System Administrators need to configure the following new setting to restrict access to the catalog:

Table 13: New setting for restricting catalog access

Name	Description	Default Value
Enable course owner-based restric- tions for security roles with limited access to the Learning Catalog	When this setting is enabled, only those users can view the courses or classes in the catalog where they are the course owners.	Disabled

This setting is not domain-aware. So, you cannot set the value differently for different domains.

To configure this setting, navigate to **Admin > System > Configure System > Services > Learning > Catalog > Courses**.

In addition to this new setting, this update also introduces the following new security privilege on the **Course** component:

• Can search courses and classes, irrespective of the course owner association in the Learning Catalog menu

By default, this privilege is enabled only for the predefined security roles that have access to the Learning Catalog menu. For example, Learning Admin - Catalog Builder, Super User, and so on.

This privilege is checked on the logged-in person's home domain.

To configure this setting, navigate to **Admin > System > Manage Security > Security Roles**, search for the required role and then search for the 'Course' component.

To implement the course owner-based restrictions on the learning catalog, System Administrators need to perform the following configuration:

- Enable the 'Enable course owner-based restrictions for security roles with limited access to the Learning Catalog' setting
- Disable the 'Can search courses and classes irrespective of the course owner association in the Learning Catalog menu' privilege from security roles of users having access to the Learning Catalog menu

When this configuration is in place, users having access to the Learning Catalog menu have limited visibility of courses in the domains on which they are given the Learning Catalog menu access through their security roles. Thereby, they can search for only those courses where they are associated as the course owner. Furthermore, they can view classes for only those courses where they are associated as owner at course level.

When a course is created by an administrator having such restricted course owner-based access, Saba Cloud associates the course creator as the owner of the course by default. This ensures that the course has at least one owner associated by default. The same owner will later inherit the classes based on this course. If the administrators do not want to be associated as owners of the course, then they can update the course details after it is created.

When updating a course owner, administrators must ensure to save the course. The course owner change is indexed and reflected in the global search only after saving the course.

Course owner-based restriction is currently applicable for the following workflows only:

- · Search courses or classes from the learning catalog
- Quick course wizard By default, the course creator is added as the course owner in the quick course wizard.
- Create class from an existing course
- · Class request from the Manage Learning Request workflow
- Global search (for administrators only)

Display price lists based on audience types

For organizations that have multiple vendors or partners managing their learning catalog, it is often important to define a different price list for each vendor or partner so that the price list for one vendor should not be visible to the other.

Prior to this update, while creating or updating courses and classes, Learning Administrators could view all the price lists associated with a course, delivery type or class from the **Policies** tab. They could also search and view all price lists in the system while adding a new price list to a course, delivery type, or class. There was no restriction on the visibility of price lists on these pages for administrators.

In this update, Saba Cloud now provides the ability to enforce restrictions on the visibility of price lists in the system so that Learning Administrators can view only those price lists that match their audience type.

System Administrators can now configure the following new setting under the **Pricing** service to implement this restriction:

Table 14: New setting under Pricing

Setting	Description	Default Value
Price list visibility restriction based on Audience type /Audi- ence Sub-type	If this setting is enabled, then Audience type or sub-type restriction is applied to price lists. This setting is not domain aware.	Off

To configure the setting, navigate to **Admin > System > Configure System > Services > Learning > Pricing**.

When the setting is enabled, Saba Cloud defines the price list visibility as follows:

- For a Course, Class, or Delivery Mode
 - If the audience type or sub-type of the owner of a price list added at the course, class, or delivery mode matches the audience type/sub-type of the Learning Administrator and the Learning Administrator has the 'View' privilege on the price list's domain, then the Learning Administrator can view the price list.
 - If a price list added at the course, class or delivery mode has the owner set as the domain (including the master price list) and the Learning Administrator has the 'View' privilege on the price list's domain, then the Learning Administrator can view the price list.
- For the **Add Price List** popup page
 - If the audience type or sub-type of the owner of a price list matches the audience type/sub-type of the Learning Administrator and the Learning Administrator has the 'View' privilege on the price list's domain, then the Learning Administrator can view the price list.
 - If a price list has the owner set as the domain and the Learning Administrator has the 'View' privilege on the price list's domain, then the Learning Administrator can view the price list.

Ability to clear attempt data and reset attempts for content from the transcript page

Prior to this update, Learning Administrators and Instructors did not have the capability to clear attempt data and reset attempts for contents from the completed courses (transcript) page of self-paced and session-based classes. Only People Administrators could perform these actions on content in learner enrollments.

This update allows Learning Administrators and Instructors to clear attempt data and reset attempts for contents of self-paced and session-based classes by providing the following new actions on the **Completed Courses (Transcript) Details** page:

Table 15: New actions on content

Action	Description
Clear Attempt Data	Click this link to clear all attempt data for the selected content. This removes the time spent, lesson status, com- pletion status, and attempt details for the content.
	Note: This link is not displayed if the user has not launched the content.
	This option is useful at times when learners are not able to launch content because of bad tracking data for their con- tent attempts in the system.
	Note: This ability is applicable to AICC, SCORM, Deployed SCORM, Tin Can, Deployed Tin Can, Video, and Audio content only.
Reset Attempts on Content	Click this link to reset all attempts on the selected content.
	By default, Learning Administrators and Instructors do not have the privileges to view the Edit link for a transcript and the Reset Attempts on Content link on the transcript details page. System Administrators need to manually grant the following privileges to users with these roles:
	 'Content - Can Reset Content Attempts' privilege on 'Person, Internal' component 'Can edit Completed Courses entry for others' privilege on the 'Offering Action Profile' component

To access these new actions, navigate to **Admin > Learning**, search and edit the required class, click **Roster** or **Results** button, and then click the **Edit** button for the required learner. Saba Cloud displays the **Completed Courses (Transcript) Details** page for the learner.

Module	Requirement	Completion Status	Details	Actions
CricketBasicsIPhone	Required	Unsuccessful	Attempts Allowed: 3 Attempts Made: 1 Attempts Left: : 2 Passing Score: 100.00 Score: 0.00	Reset Attempts on Content Clear Attempt Data View

Figure 50: Clear Attempt Data link

Auto-completion of a virtual class when participant views class recording

Prior to this update, the Saba Cloud supported auto-completion policies for live participation in a Saba Meeting virtual classroom event. That is, when a learner spent a predefined percentage of class duration in the session or if the user's passing score was above a predefined value, the Saba Meeting virtual class was marked complete in Saba Cloud. However, there was no option to automatically mark class completion when learners viewed the virtual class recording. For example, if the learner missed one out of multiple class sessions, they would view the recording later.

This update provides the ability to automatically mark a virtual class as complete when learners view the virtual class recording by introducing the following new policies at the system as well as the class level:

Table 16: New auto-completion policies for virtual classrooms

Policy Name	Description	Default Value
Minimum playback time viewed for this virtual class recording in per- cent	Specify the minimum playback time in percentage that a user must view a virtual class recording for achieving class completion.	0
	Enter a numeric value in this field, where the value indicates percentage of class duration required to be spent by class learners while viewing the recording. For example, if you specify 50 in this field, then it means learners need to view 50% or more of the class recording to mark the class complete for that learner.	
	If Only score define completion for this virtual class policy is enabled and Minimum playback time viewed for this virtual class recording in percent is disabled at the system or class level, then playback completion for the virtual class considers only the overall evaluation status for completion.	
	If Only score define completion for this virtual class is disabled and Minimum playback time viewed for this virtual class recording in per- cent is enabled and if learners view only the class recording, then the virtual class completion is based on the playback time percentage defined in the field.	
	If both Only score define completion for this virtual class and Minimum playback time viewed for this virtual class recording in percent policies are enabled at the system or class level, then the virtual class is marked complete only when the time spent while viewing the class recording is greater than or equal to minimum playback time defined for the class, and the learner's overall score is equal to or greater than the pass score defined for the class. If the evaluation or the playback per- centage criteria are not fulfilled by a learner, then the virtual class status is set to <i>Not Evaluated</i> .	

Policy Name	Description	Default Value
Minimum evaluations completed in this virtual class or its recording	Specify the minimum number of evaluations that a user must com- plete in a virtual class or its recording for achieving class completion.	0
	Enter a numeric value in this field, where the value indicates the count of evaluations required to be com- pleted in the live class or its recording by class learners. If the number of evaluations completed by a learner is greater than the value defined in this policy, then the completion status of the virtual class is set to 'Successful'.	
	For example, if you specify 5 in this field, then it means learners need to complete 5 or more evaluations in the live class or its recording to mark the class complete.	
	If the number of evaluations com- pleted is less than the number in this field, then the status remains as <i>Not</i> <i>Evaluated</i> .	
	The default value is 0, which means that this policy is not active and will not be used in determining the class completion.	
	Note: If a session contains no evalu- ations but a number is defined in this policy, then all completions are marked as <i>Not Evaluated</i> .	

Note: These settings are only applicable to virtual classes that are delivered using Saba Classroom. They do not apply to other virtual classroom providers such as WebEx, Adobe, or Zoom.

If both **Minimum playback time viewed for this virtual class recording in percent** and **Minimum evaluations completed in this virtual class or its recording** policies are set to a value greater than 0, then both the criteria are used to determine whether the learner has completed the class successfully or not.

At the domain level, System Administrators can configure these policies by navigating to the Settings under **Admin > System > Configure System > Services > Learning > Catalog > Classes**. These settings apply to all classes in the domain.

Learning Administrators can override these policies at the individual class level by navigating to the **Policies** tab of the required virtual class.

	If for any reason the class is not completed
	Automatically change completion status after number of days specified below to the specified status below.
	Days
	Status -Select One-
	(Days are counted after scheduled end date, OR after registration confirmation date for self-paced classes. 0 means completion is never marked automatically.)
	Show Best Attempt Score on Learner Transcript
	Yes
	○ No
	Only score define completion for this virtual class $\hfill \Box$
	Minimum attendance time for this virtual class in percent 18
	Minimum playback time viewed for this virtual class recording in percent 0
	Minimum evaluations completed in this virtual class or its recording
l '	

Figure 51: Playback-related auto-completion policies for Virtual Classrooms

Saba Cloud computes the virtual class completion as follows:

· When a learner has attended a live session

If a learner has attended a live class session but did not complete the class (status is Not Evaluated), then the learner can still launch the playback and get credit for completion of session if they fulfill the playback policy.

· When a learner has not attended the live session but views only the session recording

The class attendance is recorded based on the configuration of the playback policies as described above.

· When a learner views the session recording after an unsuccessful attempt

The class status does not change. For playback of a class session, only single attempt is considered, where the status is set to successful or unsuccessful/not evaluated.

Allow a class to be marked delivered even when learner session is unsuccessful

Prior to this update, when the 'Prevent delivering a class if any learner session is incomplete for the class.' setting was enabled, Saba Cloud checked the session status of class learners at the transcript level while marking the class as 'Delivered'. If the session status of a learner in the class was not marked as 'Successful', then irrespective of the learner's class completion status, the class was not allowed to be marked as 'Delivered'.

In this update, Saba Cloud enhances the behavior for marking a class as 'Delivered'. If the 'Prevent delivering a class if any learner session is incomplete for the class.' setting under the **Class** service is enabled, and when a class completion status is set to 'Unsuccessful', then Saba Cloud now allows Learning Administrators and Instructors to mark the class as 'Delivered' irrespective of the session status at the transcript level.

Note: If the setting is enabled and when the class is in the 'Successful' and other completion statuses, then Saba Cloud continues to validate the learner's session status at the transcript level.

Auto launch attribute for certifications and curricula is now editable

Prior to this update, the **Default Value** check box of the **Auto launch** attribute at the Certification and Curriculum components was not editable. The **Auto launch** attribute controlled the **Continuous launch** field for certifications and curricula. So, System Administrators could not control the default value of the **Continuous launch** field.

In this update, Saba Cloud now allows System Administrators to set the default value of the **Auto launch** attribute at the Certification and Curriculum component. So, when Learning Administrators try to create a new certification or a curriculum, the default value of the **Continuous launch** field now depends on the default value set at the component level by the System Administrator.

To configure the **Auto launch** attribute, navigate to **Admin > System > Configure System > Services > Learning > Certifications/Curricula**, edit the **Certifications** or **Curricula** service > **Components** tab and click **Certification** or **Curriculum** component.

Component Details:	Certification	
Component Details		Print Export
Name	Value	
UI Label	Auto launch	
Audit	No Auditing ~	
Data Is Protected		
Default Value		
Display		
Is Required	Yes	
	SAVE	CANCEL

Figure 52: Default Value of the Auto launch attribute

By default, the **Default Value** check box of the **Auto launch** attribute is not selected. That is, the **Continuous launch** field for certifications and curricula is not selected by default.

Registration Rules					
Select rules for registration that the learner must follow when registering for the certification.					
Enforce Module Sequencing	Learners must register for all modules and complete them in the order in which they are defined.				
Enforce Target Date 🧿	Learner must select the classes with end date before target date selected in the completion criteria section.				
One-click registration 🧃	The learner will be registered for all classes of a matching program on selecting 'Register'.				
Continuous launch 🏼 🍞	Launch all web-based classes sequentially on completion of previous class.				
Allow Self Registration 🧿	Selecting this option allows learners to register for the certification and learning items in it.				
Enforce registration of required number of courses for required modules.	Learners must register to minimum number of courses required to complete this learning event.				

Figure 53: Continuous launch field

Custom fields to display UI label values

Prior to this update, custom fields displayed via keywords on a certificate of completion only showed the underlying terms stored as table entries in the system. These values were not necessarily user-friendly, as the certificates of completion are used by learner in different processes.

In this update, a site property is added to display the UI label value of the custom field keyword in the Certificate of Completion.

To configure the setting, navigate to Admin > System > Configure System > Microsites > Saba Cloud > Site properties > Learning > Display UI Label for Custom Fields in COC. By default, the property value is 'true'.

If set to 'true', then the Certificate of Completion templates include the UI label of the custom fields for person, profile custom sections, course, class, certification, and curriculum. This new setting applies to all custom fields that are marked as LOVs under component details.

		* = requir
	Print Export	
Value		
Custom Six (LOV)	•	
No Auditing	~	
]	
	-	
No		
No		
No		
No		
255		
255]	
	Value Custom Six (LOV) No Auditing . <td>Value Custom Six (LOV) No Auditing </td>	Value Custom Six (LOV) No Auditing

Figure 54: Custom field marked as LOV option

You can access and add values to the custom field by navigating to the specific module that the custom field is added to. For example, to add values to custom fields located on an Internal Person's profile data, you can navigate to, **People Admin** > **Manage People** > **Internal/External People** and search the Person's profile to edit.

On the Edit Profile page, scroll down to Other Information and Custom fields.

People Home	
✓ Manage People	Other Information
Internal People	Custom LOV -Select One-
External People	Custom1 Completed year Course duration
Proxy Settings	Custom2 Grade
Enrollments	
Completed Courses	

Figure 55: Select custom fields

Click the Edit icon to launch the **List of Entries** popup, where you can add or edit the values for the LOV list.

Web Accessibility	💤 Saba -	Google Chro	me		-	
Timezone* (GMT+01:00) Amsterdam, Berlin, Bern, Rome, St	a dq3a	loc1.sabacl	loud.com/Saba/Web_	wdk/DOC1Admin/pl	atform/a	appfra
	List of	Entries				
Alternate Managers Add	Entries		Add List Entry Print	Export Modify Table		1
Name		Name	UI Label	Actions		
Pat Rose		Entry 3	Completed year	Delete		L .
	0	Entry 2	Course duration	Delete		L .
	0	Entry 1	Course level	Delete		L .
Iternate Team Members		Entry 4	Grade	Delete		
No items found		1				۰.
they beforenation	Syste	em store value	ed UI lat	pel value		
nerinformation	-					
-Select One- V						

Figure 56: List of entries

The Certificates of Completion Template can be accessed by navigating to **Admin > Learning > Manage Learning Catalog > Certificates of Completion**, where you can view the keyword values. The associated UI values will show on the certificate of completion when a learner completes a course.

Learning Home	Admin / Learning / Manage Learning Catalog / Certificates of Completion	
Manage Learning Catalog	Certificates of Completion	
Learning Catalog	Name AWS	
Audience Types	Configure Save Search Query SEARCH	
Certificates of Completion	Certificate Template New Certificate Template Print	Export Modify Table
Delivery Types	Name Description	Actions
Dentery Types	AWS certification This certificate is issued on completion of AWS courses 1 through 4	Delete
Price Lists		

Figure 57: Certificate of Completion Template

Redesigned Certification and Curriculum Detail Pages

Saba Cloud provides you an option to view the completely redesigned certification and curriculum detail pages, where the information is presented in a visually appealing and intuitive manner. In addition to the modern and refreshing user experience, the redesigned pages also provide a streamlined registration process.

Note: These pages are available as part of the **Learning Beta** feature set. Certain features from the legacy certification and curriculum detail pages may or may not be available in the redesigned pages. We will continue to enhance these pages over the next few updates.

The redesigned certification and curriculum pages are currently available only from the **Me** and **My Team** user roles. Administrators can access these pages if they are viewing certifications or curricula from a learner's context.

Features

Salient features of the redesigned pages are:

- New inline class selection and registration for improved registration experience
- Ability to enable or disable class suggestions, giving more control to administrators
- Enhanced design of paths with easy access to different information
- · Intuitive display of modules with upfront display of various details for quick decisions
- · Quick access for adding the certification or curriculum to learner's plan
- · Supports the Modern Content Player for an immersible content launch experience
- Easy access to the legacy certification and curriculum detail pages

Points to note

It is important to note the following:

- The basic certification and curriculum functionality remains unchanged.
- The completion statuses of certifications and curricula remain the same. Only the visual representation is enhanced in the redesigned pages.
- The certification and curriculum assignment, expiry, and reassignment process remain unaffected.
- All the security privileges and access rules for working with certifications and curricula remain the same.
- All existing predefined notifications for certifications and curricula are applicable.

Configure the redesigned pages

By default, Saba Cloud displays the legacy certification and curriculum details pages.

Your System Administrators need to perform the following configuration to enable the redesigned pages and its various features.

Enable the service

System administrators need to enable the following service.

Table 17: Service for redesigned pages

Service	Description	Default Value
Learning Beta	This service under Learning service provides the various beta features in learning.	Enabled

To configure this service, navigate to **Admin > System > Configure System > Services > Learning**.

Enable the settings

System Administrators need to enable the following new settings under the **Learning Beta** service.

Table 18: Settings for redesigned pages

Setting	Description	Default Value
Enable enhanced Certifica- tion and Curriculum Detail page	If this setting is enabled, then the enhanced certification and curriculum detail pages are enabled.	Disabled
Allow Learner to add certific- ation and curriculum to plan from their enhanced detail pages	If this setting is enabled, then end users can see the Add to Plan action on the re- designed certification and curriculum detail page. They can use this action to add the certification or curriculum to their plan.	Disabled
	This setting is not domain aware.	
	Note:	
	 Currently, this setting is applicable only to learners. It is not applicable to managers, registrars, and other administrator roles. The setting controls the visibility of the Add to Plan action only for the redesigned pages. 	
Enable class suggestions for courses during Certification and Curriculum registration from enhanced detail page	If this setting is enabled, then class sugges- tions are made for courses during the certi- fication and curriculum registration process from the redesigned detail page. Classes are suggested based on a predefined sys- tem logic and the suggested classes are pre-selected on the page. End users can modify the class selection for such courses. This setting is not domain aware.	Enabled

To configure these settings, navigate to **Admin > System > Configure System > Services > Learning > Learning Beta**.

View the redesigned certification and curriculum detail page

When the redesigned certification and curriculum detail pages are enabled, end users and managers can access them from the different workflows such as:

- Global search
- Catalog browse
- Plan
- Plan Beta
- To-Do List, and so on

The redesigned page displays a prominent header and various sections that display different details.

For easy navigation, the main sections can be accessed by clicking the following tabs just below the header:

- Paths
- Overview & Other Information
- History

	Certification ID: 0000042283 Environmental conservation 2021 85% In Progress ☆☆☆☆☆	LEGACY VIEW 🔍 < : VIEW PATHS
Paths	Overview & Other Information	History
Environmental protection in 4 Environmental protection in 4 Due to the pressures of overconsumption, population been recognized, and governments have begun placin movements have created more awareness of the mult activity, so protection measures are occasionally deba	nmental protection in 4 growth and technology, the biophysical environment i ig restraints on activities that cause environmental de tiple environmental problems. There is disagreement o ated.	is being degraded, sometimes permanently. This has gradation. Since the 1960s, environmental on the extent of the environmental impact of human 85% Path Completed
Environmental Conservation (Required)	Complete 3 of 3	 Solor dat completed Solor dat completed
Animal Conservation (Required) Comple	tte 1 of 1	⊘ 1/1
Marine Conservation (Required) Comple	te any 2 of 3	O 1/3

VIEW

Figure 58: Redesigned certification detail page

Web-Based

Aqua Life Conservation

Successful

On 2021-06-16

Page header

The header displays vital summary of a certification or curriculum such as its name, ID, version number, completion status, progress percentage bar, image, various dates, assigner name, and so on depending on the completion status of the certification or curriculum. It also displays various actions upfront for quick access.

When a certification or curriculum contains a single path, then the header displays the **Register** action. If it contains multiple paths, then the header displays the **View Paths** action.

If the continuous launch property is enabled for a certification or curriculum and if the user has registered for all required items in the certification or curriculum, then the header displays the **Launch** action. For continuous launch, all content in the certification or curriculum is launched in the Modern content player, irrespective of the values of content player site properties 'Enhance Course/Class Detail page Player independent' and 'Content launch behavior consistent' that define the player at the content level. If continuous launch is disabled, then the player in which the content is launched, depends on the values of these site properties.

When you have acquired the certification or curriculum, then the header displays the **Print Certificate** and **Export Certificate** actions.

If an image is not provided during certification or curriculum creation, then Saba Cloud displays the system default image. System Administrator can override the system default image by a custom one.

Note: Currently, IE 11 browser supports a scaling of 100% only on desktop screens. Using any other scaling on your desktop screen can cause distortion to the certification or curriculum image.

The header also displays Web 2.0 actions such as tags, bookmark, share, rate, and comment if they are enabled for the learning catalog.

Note: To enable Web 2.0 actions for certifications and curricula, your System Administrator must enable the **Web 2.0 Actions for Learning Catalog** setting under **Admin > System > Configure System > Services > Learning > Catalog**.

The following figures illustrate sample page headers for a certification in various statuses.



Figure 59: Page header - Assigned status



Figure 60: Page header - In Progress status

Certification ID: 0000042281 Environmental conservation	LEGACY VIEW 🔍 < 🗄
0% Assigned ☆☆☆☆☆	LAUNCH

Figure 61: Page header - Launch (When Continuous Launch is enabled)

Certification ID: 0000042603 Global Environmental Conservation Certification	LEGACY VIEW 🍳 < 🗄
100% Acquired	
፟፟፟፟፟፟፟፟፟፟፟፟፟፟፟፟፟፟፟፟፟	PRINT CERTIFICATE

Figure 62: Page header - Acquired status

Page sections

Along with a prominent header, the redesigned certification and curriculum detail page displays one or more of the following sections:

- Paths
- Overview
- Associated Skills
- Attachments
- Complete and Earn/Achievements
- Other Information
- Evaluation
- My History
- Ratings and Comments

You may not see all sections for every certification or curriculum. The availability of a section depends on the status and structure of your certification or curriculum. For example, the **Ratings and Comments** section is displayed only if a certification or curriculum has been acquired and is rated by someone. While the **Evaluation** section is displayed only after the certification or curriculum is acquired and if an evaluation is associated with it.

Paths

The redesigned certification and curriculum detail page displays paths as tabs in the **Paths** section. To view details of a path, click the required path tab. It displays the path description (if configured), path progress, and the modules it holds.

To set a path as the default path, click the **Set Path as Default** link. Every path displays a **Register** button. To register for a path, click the **Register** button in that tab.

If 'One-click registration' is enabled for a certification or curriculum, and program is configured with pre-selected classes, then clicking the **Register** action from various flows such as My Plan, global search, and so on opens the registration confirmation popup page. But, if there is any error during one-click registration, then Saba Cloud displays the redesigned certification or curriculum registration page.

Overview & Other Information	Paths
Paths	
Environmental protection in 4 Environmental protection in 4	
Due to the pressures of overconsumption, population growth and technology, the been recognized, and governments have begun placing restraints on activities the movements have created more awareness of the multiple environmental problem activity, so protection measures are occasionally debated.	e biophysical environment is being degraded, sometimes permanently. This has nat cause environmental degradation. Since the 1960s, environmental ms. There is disagreement on the extent of the environmental impact of human
Environmental Conservation (Required) Complete 3 of 3	O 1/3
Animal Conservation (Required) Complete 1 of 1	O/1
Marine Conservation (Required) Complete any 2 of 3	() 0/3
Human Conservation (Required) Complete 1 of 1	O/1
 Reduce, Reuse, Recycle! (Optional) 	○ 0/1
	REGISTER

Figure 63: Paths section

The page displays an expanded module view by default. You can view the learning items in the module and take the required action on them. If you have already registered for or completed a learning item in the module, then they are displayed with the corresponding status and you do not need to register for them or complete them again.

If module sequencing is enforced for the certification or curriculum, then certain actions in the consecutive modules are not enabled till you complete the required items in the previous module in the sequence.

The module title displays important details such as whether the module is required or optional, the number of learning items needed to complete the module, and the module completion indicator. The images shown for learning objects in a module are just thumbnails of the actual images of those objects. The following figures illustrate modules in various statuses.

Table 19: Module in various statuses

Status	Module Indicator	
Assigned	Reduce, Reuse, Recycle! (Optional) Reduce, Reuse, Recycle!	O 0/1
	Pending Registration Course Figure 64: Module in Assigned status	VIEW
In-progress	Marine Conservation (Required) Complete any 2 of 3	O 1/3
	Aqua Life Conservation Successful On 2021-09-23	VIEW
	Visit aquariums and marine sanctuaries Pending Registration Course	VIEW
	Water conservation Pending Registration Certification	VIEW
	Figure 65: Module in In-progress status	
Completed	▲ Animal Conservation (Required) Complete 1 of 1	⊘ 1/1
	Wildlife conservation Successful On 2021-09-23	VIEW
	Figure 66: Module in Completed status	

Overview

The **Overview** section displays the following information:

- Certification or curriculum description, if available
- Parent certification or curriculum details, if any
- Validity details, if applicable
- Available from date
- Any informative messages. For example, 'Nested certification selected at the time of registration would be assigned to learner if not already assigned.' or 'This certification requires taking all classes in given order.'

To view all details in this section, click **Show more**.

Paths Overview & Other Information		History			
Overview Environmental conservation is basically the practice of us humans to save the environment from collapsing, such as loss of species, ecosystems due to					
pollution and human activities. This helps both trees and animals, since some of us are dependent on them to survive. Environmental protection is the practice of protecting the natural environment by individuals, organizations and governments. Its objectives are to conserve natural resources and the existing natural environment and, where possible, to repair damage and reverse trends.					
Assigned by: Miss Linka					
Valid for: 100 day(s)					
	Show less				

Figure 67: Overview section

Associated Skills

If the certification or curriculum has any associated skills, then this section is displayed.

Associated Skills			< Previous Next >
۲	*	*	
Data analysis	Communication	Critical thinking	
4 Proficiency levels	4 Proficiency levels	4 Proficiency levels	

Figure 68: Associated Skills section

You can click the skill name to view its details such as its current level, required level, attachments, and recommended courses to achieve the proficiency. You can click **Assess Now** to assess the skill and submit the new level.

Critical thinking		
Kwame Earth		
Average		
3 Current level	0 Required level	4 Maximum level
Attachments: 📕 att2	attachment with long 🕞 attc3	Show more
ASSESS NOW		

Figure 69: Skill details

Attachments

If your catalog administrator has added any attachments to the certification or curriculum, then the redesigned page displays the **Attachments** section. You can click the download icon to download an attachment.

Attachments	
Pre_course Materials Pre-Course Material	

Figure 70: Attachments section

Complete and Earn

If the **Rewards** service is enabled, and if any badges and points are associated with the certification or curriculum, then this section is displayed. It displays both the badges and points you can earn by completing the certification or curriculum, if applicable.



Figure 71: Complete and Earn section

Achievements

This section displays the badges and points you earned after completing the certification or curriculum.

Other Information

The **Other Information** section displays details such as certification or curriculum owners and any custom fields. You can expand a sub-section to view more details.

Other Information			
Category Nature & Conservation Sub Category Conservation Planning			
Owners Captain Planet			

Figure 72: Other Information section

You can see the owners of the certification or curriculum by expanding the **Owners** section. When you click the owner name link, Saba Cloud displays their profile card in a popup page.

Evaluations

If a certification or curriculum contains evaluations, then you can view those evaluations and its related actions in this section.

My History

The **My History** section displays the historical life cycle of a learner for that certification or curriculum. It displays various stages such as assignment, progress, acquisition, expiration, and re-certification. If a certification or curriculum was acquired at any time, then it also displays the Acquisition Date and the Expiration Date besides the *Acquired* status.

Progress History				Print 🖶
2021-06-12 (6:29 AM)	Recertification Required			
2021-06-11 (1:39 PM)	Acquired Acc	quisition date: 2021-06-11 piration date: 2021-09-19	SHOW ACQUISITION HISTORY	
2021-06-11 (1:38 PM)	In Progress			
2021-06-09 (6:08 PM)	Assigned			

Figure 73: My History section

Clicking **Print** displays the print preview and allows you to print the complete history.

Clicking **Show Acquisition History** displays the path and modules that the user took to acquire the certification or curriculum in that instance of acquisition.

Acc	uisition History				\times
	Environmental protection in 4 s	teps - French			
	Completion date: 2021-06-11	Expiration date: 2021-09-19)		
	Module	Title	Туре	Completion date	
	Environmental Conservation	Reduce use of plastic	Course	2021-06-11	
	Environmental Conservation	Recycle for environment protection	Course	2021-06-11	
	III			1 - 2 Of 2	
				CLOSE	

Figure 74: Show Acquisition History

Ratings and Comments

The **Ratings and Comments** section displays the certification or curriculum ratings and comments. You can view ratings and comments provided by other users, irrespective of whether you have registered for the certification or curriculum or completed it. You can rate the certification or curriculum only after acquiring it. You can view your ratings and comments, as well as edit or delete your comments. You can also filter the ratings by selecting a star value from the **Star rating** dropdown list.

The visibility of the **Ratings and Comments** section is controlled by the following:

- The 'Web 2.0 Actions for Learning Catalog' setting under **Catalog** service is enabled on logged-in user's domain.
- The **Rating** service is enabled.

Leave you	r Rating & Comments
Ratings and Comments Kwame Earth 2021-06-11 3:11 PM Exceptional Edit	Star rating: All 🗸
Miss Linka 2021-06-10 7:44 PM	

Figure 75: Ratings and Comments section

Register for a certification or curriculum

The redesigned certification and curriculum detail pages simplify the registration workflow.

To register for a certification or curriculum from the redesigned page:

1. Click the **Register** button for the required certification or curriculum. The registration page appears.

Note: Only 'required' modules are displayed by default. To view 'optional' modules as well, disable the **Show Required Modules** toggle bar.

EDV	ironmental conservation
EN	VIRONMENTAL PROTECTION IN 4 STEPS V Show Required Modules
Sele	ect one or more courses you want to register to, and a class within each selected course. For additional registration guidelines, click here
E	
Envir	complete 2 or 2
~	Recycle for environment protection
~	Recycle for environment protection English Web-Based 00:00 0 USD
~	Recycle for environment protection English Web-Based 00:00 0 USD
✓ ✓	Recycle for environment protection English Web-Based 00:00 0 USD Reduce use of plastic English Web Parend 2020 0 USD
✓ ✓	Recycle for environment protection English Web-Based 00:00 0 USD Reduce use of plastic English Web-Based 00:00 0 USD

Figure 76: Certification registration page

2. For a certification or curriculum with multiple paths, the registration page displays the path drop-down list. If you need to change the path, select a path from the list. The page refreshes to display the corresponding programs (if any) and modules in the path.

3. If the selected path contains blended programs, then the registration page displays the **Program** drop-down list. Select a program from the list. The page refreshes to display the corresponding modules and class selections (if any) in the program.

< Back			
Registe Demo	er to D-Certification-001		
Path	A Program: PROGRAM W	ITH SUGGESTED CLASSES 🗸	
Select	one or more courses you want to registe	Preselected class Program	ted course. For additional registration guidelines, click here
		No Program	
Module	e 1 (Required) Complete 2 of 2		
✓ →	Demo-Course-003		
	English Web-Based 0 USD		
\checkmark	Demo-Course-004		In progress
	English Web-Based 01:00		
Total cost: (0.00 USD		CANCEL COMPLETE REGISTRATION

Figure 77: Select a program

4. If the auto-class suggestion logic is enabled, then certain classes within the courses in a module appear as suggested classes and are already selected on this page. You can continue to retain the pre-defined selection or change it if needed.

Or,

If the auto-class suggestion logic is disabled, then click the course title to expand the view, and select the required class.

In either case, you can expand a course to select or change classes in it. You can use the class filters to narrow down your search results. To view more details about a class, click the **Class Info** link.

Note: You can select only one class in a course.

Your system administrators can configure the auto-class suggestion logic. For more details, see configuration.

Environmental Conservation (R	equired) Complete 2 of 2		
Recycle for environment prot English Web-Based 00:00	ection 0 USD		
English Web-Based 00:00	ID: 0000065442 Class Info	Suggested Class	0 USD
▼ Filters ▲			
Language:	Location:	Available from:	
Select 🗸	Select	Q Select date 🛅	
Delivery type:			
Select 🗸			
		CLEAR FILTERS APPLY FILT	TERS
English Web-Based 00:00	ID: 9029HJKL Class Info	(0 USD
English Web-Based 00:00	ID: 889IJKSKJ Class Info	(0 USD

Figure 78: Course with Auto-class suggestion logic enabled

- Once you complete the class selections, click the Complete Registration button.
 If enabled, then the Additional Information popup page opens.

Additional information					
Order Custom	n Fields:				
Do you want to have a hotel booked the night before??	A, Yes, Please book a hotel for me	~			
Do you want to have a hotel booked during the course?	Yes	~			
Do you want to have a hotel booked the night after?	No	~			
Do you want to	No	CANCEL	SAVE		

Figure 79: Additional fields

7. Fill in the custom details and click **Save**. Saba Cloud displays the confirmation popup page.

Register to Environmental conse	You have success	sfully registered for this certification		1
	Order Number:	0000023089		
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTI	Bill to(Organization):	Root		
Select one or more courses yo	Total order discount:	0 USD		elines, click here
	Cost:	2 USD		
Environmental Conservat			CLOSE	
🛛 🔺 Recycle for environme	nt protection			
English Web-Based	00:00 0 USD			

Figure 80: Registration confirmation

8. Click **Close**. Saba Cloud successfully registers you for the certification or curriculum and takes you back to the redesigned details page.

Add a certification or curriculum to plan from the redesigned pages

You can also add a certification or curriculum to your plan directly from the redesigned certification or curriculum detail page using the **Add to Plan** action. Similarly, managers can also add a certification or curriculum to their team member's plan using the **Add to Plan** action.

This action is not displayed by default on the redesigned certification or curriculum detail page. However, System Administrators can configure the visibility of this action for end users. For more details, see configuration.

Managers can view this action on the redesigned pages of their team members, irrespective of the setting value.

To add a certification or curriculum to your plan or to your team member's plan:

- **1.** In the redesigned certification or curriculum page header, click the drop-down arrow on the action button.
- 2. Click Add to Plan.

	Certification ID: 0000042283 Environmental conservation	ı	EGACY VIEW 🍳 < 🗄
	This certification is not in your plan.		
	፟፟፟፟፟፟፟፟፟፟፟፟፟፟፟፟፟፟		VIEW PATHS 🗸
Overview & Other Inform	ation	Paths	

Figure 81: Add to Plan

3. In the popup, add an optional due date and click **Add**. Saba Cloud adds the certification or curriculum to your plan.



Figure 82: Add due date
If selected, then this date appears on the user's plan for the certification or curriculum. If no due date is selected, then the due date is calculated as per the target days set for the certification or curriculum. If no target days are set, then the assignment happens without any due date.

Switch to the legacy certification or curriculum page view

You can return to the legacy page view of the certification or curriculum from the redesigned page by clicking the **Legacy View** link on the redesigned page.

See figure below.

Certification ID: 0000042283 Environmental conservation	LEGACY VIEW 🔍 < 🗄
This certification is not in your plan.	
***	VIEW PATHS

Figure 83: Legacy View link

To return to the redesigned page, simply click the **Click here** link on the legacy page.

	Environmental conservation							
i	We have a new enhanced view of the Certification detail page. To try it out please Click Here.							
This certific	cation requires taking all classes in given order.							
****	REGISTER	2						
Environmental pollution and h Environmental more PATH DE	I conservation is basically the practice of us humans to save the environment from collapsing, such as loss of species, ecosystems due to numan activities. This helps both trees and animals, since some of us are dependent on them to survive. protection is the practice of protecting the natur							
Path:	Environmental protec							
Environmental Conservation * Complete 2 of 2								
	ecycle for environment pro Completed by equivalent VIEW CLASSES							
Re W	educe use of plastic IN PROGRESS LAUNCH V							

Figure 84: Legacy page

Limitations of redesigned certification and curriculum detail pages

Currently, the redesigned certification and curriculum detail pages have the following limitations:

- The redesigned pages are not available from any administrator workflows.
- The redesigned pages are not completely responsive. They may not provide the same experience when you switch to different screen sizes.

Chapter **7**

Marketplace

Topics:

- Marketplace Classic
- Marketplace (Beta)

This section includes the following topics that will guide you through the new features and improvements under Marketplace.

Marketplace Classic

Cornerstone Content connector enhancements

In this update, **Cornerstone Content** connector in Marketplace Classic is enhanced to include the following:

Moved commonly used fields outside for easy configuration

To make the configuration steps easier and faster, some fields that are commonly used are moved from the mapping page to the main configuration page.

CONTENT	IOVE I ED, ej4, Grovo and many others. Content is available to and management, modern compliance, wellness and wellbein more. Our content curation team is constantly monitoring the subscriptions monthly to ensure they are relevant for today's e Contact your account manager or explore on your own at Corr	or protessional skills, lea g, remote work, technol : market and updating ti ever changing business perstone Content Anytir	adership logy and hese climate.
The free Saba Cloud Conne launch content seamlessly	ector automatically syncs your purchased subscriptions to the Saba Lea with no separate SSO setup required. Completions are tracked in real-ti	arning catalog. Learners me.	s can
Already purchased Corners	stone Content?		
Once you purchase your su content.	bscriptions, simply follow the steps here to complete your connector co	onfiguration and sync yo	bur
Once you purchase your su content.	bscriptions, simply follow the steps here to complete your connector co	Infiguration and sync ye	bur
Once you purchase your su content.	World	onfiguration and sync yo	our
Once you purchase your su content. Domain: * Course Owner: *	bscriptions, simply follow the steps here to complete your connector co World Create WBT Course MIGRATION_ADMIN	figuration and sync ye	Sur

Figure 85: Configuration fields on the connector card

The language configuration is now easier with the check boxes for selection.

CORNERSTONE CONTENT				×
	French - France			<u>^</u>
	German - Germany			
	🗌 Spanish - Spain			
	✓ English - United States			
	🗌 Italian - Italy			
	Portuguese - Portugal			
	Chinese - China			
	English - United Kingdom			
	Spanish - Mexico			
	Arabic - Saudi Arabia			
				•
DISABLE	MY SUBSCRIPTIONS SY	NC ALL	CONFIGURE MAPPING	SAVE

Figure 86: Languages configuration in Cornerstone Content

The default sort order is now **Is Active** > **Subscription Provider** > **Subscription Name**. Finally, the **Refresh** button is added to the **My Subscriptions** page.

					REF
SUBSCRIPTION	SUBSCRIPTION PROVIDER	IS ACTIVE	SYNC STATUS	COMMENTS	ACTION
Bookboon - English Catalog (Deep Integration)	Bookboon	Yes	INITIATED	Sync Date: 09/15/2021 12:07 AM.	SY
CCMS STG Test Bundle for SC	Emerald	Yes	COMPLETED	Sync Date: 09/15/2021 12:07 AM. Subscription updated.	SY
Content Anytime Fundamentals	Cornerstone	Yes	INITIATED	Sync Date: 09/15/2021 12:07 AM.	SY
Content Anytime Modern Compliance	Cornerstone	Yes	COMPLETED	Sync Date: 09/04/2021 02:55 AM. Content has been queued for import.	S
Content Anytime Professional Skills	Cornerstone	Yes	INITIATED	Sync Date: 09/15/2021 12:07 AM.	SY
Content Anytime SMB Essentials	Cornerstone	Yes	COMPLETED	Sync Date: 09/17/2021 02:47 AM. Subscription updated.	SY
Saba Sync Test Subscription 2	null	Yes	COMPLETED	Sync Date: 09/15/2021 12:07 AM. Content has been queued for import.	S
Saba Sync Test Subscriptions	null	Yes	COMPLETED	Sync Date: 09/15/2021 12:07 AM. Content has been queued for import	S

Figure 87: Updated Subscriptions page

Connectors no longer available in Marketplace Classic

Starting with this update, the Monster connector from the Recruiting Connectors section is no longer available on Saba Cloud Marketplace Classic.

Connectors moved to Beta can only be configured in Beta if you have not already configured them. If you have, you can continue to use them in Classic.

Marketplace (Beta)

Moving connectors from Classic to Beta

In this update, the following connectors are moved to Marketplace (Beta).

Cisco WebEx Training



Zoom Meetings



Zoom Webinar



Microsoft Teams Bot



•



Note: Connectors moved to Beta can only be configured in Beta.

UI Enhancements on the Marketplace (Beta) dashboard

Marketplace (Beta) dashboard now has a **Search** option at the top from which you can search for the connector that you want to work with. You can either enter the name of the connector or select a category and search within that category.

но	ме	ME	ME:TIME	MY TEAM	PEOPL	E RECRU	IT SABA H	IUB GROUPS	NE	W NAME	ADMIN		
g	₩ Ec	commerce	📽 Perform	ance 📴 P	ulse 360	🔩 Talent	\mathbf{P}_{0} Recruiting	🚓 Marketplace	46 N	larketplace(B	eta) 🏂	Extended Integration	🏚 System
	Sea	rch Conne	ctor									Q	▼ Filters ▲
	Categ	ory											´
	Sele	ect			^								
	HF	R Integration	n									DESET	ADDLY
	VL	E Integratio	'n									RESCI	AFFL
	Da	ata Integrati	on						;				
`			Ultim				Linke	d in			Wor	kforce Now	
		Iltimate	Software			Linker	din Learning	1		ADF	P Workfor	rce Now	
	ŀ	HR Integra	tion			Content	Integration	,		HRI	tegration		

Figure 88: Search option in Marketplace (Beta)

A **Back** button has been added to the dashboard at the top right corner. This enables you to quickly navigate to the dashboard from the configure page.

🏹 Ecommerce 🐇	Performance 🛛 🖉 Pulse 360	🚓 Talent 🛛 🕫 Recruiting	🐔 Marketplace 🛛 🦔 M	rketplace(Beta) 👷 Extended Int	egration 🎄 System					
BACK Ultimate Softv	vare									
	Ultimate Software The Ultipro connector for S mapping tools allow you to delta data daily, as schedul first contact an Ultipro repro Category HR Integration Status Active. Expires on	aba Cloud allows you to import loca map the Ultipro fields to the approp ed, and a full sync every two weeks esentative for a license.	ations, jobs, internal organizatio sriate fields in Saba Cloud and In order to set up and use this	ns, and internal people into Saba Clour n the appropriate format. The connect connector, you must have an Ultipro lic	I from Ultipro. The data r performs a sync of the ense. If you do not, please					
Account	Entity Config	Mapping	Schedule	Monitor	About					
		Create New Account								

Figure 89: Back button for navigation

Finally, a new section called **Upcoming** is included at the bottom of the page. This section displays connectors that are planned for future updates.

Upcoming			
OpenSesame	CONTENT	Udemy for Business	salesforce
Content	Content	Content	Data Integration

Figure 90: Upcoming connectors

Enhancements to MS Teams Bot

In this update, MS Teams Bot is updated with the following new features:

Download MS Teams Bot from Saba Cloud

You can now download the MS Teams Bot from within Saba Cloud, without waiting for Saba Support to provide the app. To download the app, navigate to **Admin** > **Marketplace** (Beta) > MS Teams Bot connector and click on Download App and again click on **Download**.

U ji	Microsoft Teams Enable learners to access th Category Bot Status Active.	eir required learning and more, dir	ectly from Microsoft Teams.	
	Account			About
Edit Account Account Name*				
Microsoft Teams Bot	s Configuration			
Microsoft Tenant ID* MST02865QS19		Profile Identifier*	×	Send Reminders DOWNLOAD APP CANCEL SAVE

Figure 91: Download MS Teams Bot

Refer to the following link from Microsoft for installation instructions:

https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/MicrosoftTeams/upload-custom-apps#upload

Admin users can now map MS Teams Email to either Saba email or Saba username

On the MS Teams Bot connector card for the **Profile Identifier** field, you can now choose either **Email** or the **Username** option to map to the MS Teams Email.

đji	Microsoft Teams Enable learners to access their required learning and more, d Category Bot Status Active.	rectly from Microsoft Teams.
	Account	About
Edit Account Account Name* New-account2 Microsoft Teams Bots	Configuration	
Microsoft Tenant ID * MST02865QS19	Profile Identifier* Email Username ✓ Email	Send Reminders DOWNLOAD APP CANCEL SAVE

Figure 92: Profile identifier field options

For more details on the MS Teams Bot access and configuration in Marketplace (Beta), refer to *Configure Microsoft Teams Bots connector* in Saba Cloud Online Help.

Chapter **8**

Meeting

Topics:

- Enhancements to the Manage Events page
- Now manage Saba Meeting recordings from Saba Cloud

This section includes topics to guide you through new features and improvements under the **Meeting** administrator tab in Saba Cloud.

Saba Meeting also includes additional new features and enhancements. For details, refer to the Saba Meeting What's new in online community.

Enhancements to the Manage Events page

Prior to this update, when Virtual Event Administrators searched for events on the **Manage Events** page, there was no indication to connect the Saba Cloud course or class ID to the Saba Meeting event ID, so that they could make the required changes to the correct class.

This update enhances the search results table on the **Manage Events** page to display the following additional columns:

- Course ID
- Class ID
- Event ID

These new columns in the search results table now facilitate the linking of the Saba Cloud course or class to the Saba Meeting event easily.

Note: Course ID and Class ID columns are applicable to virtual classrooms only.

Admin / Meetings / Manage Events			
Manage Events			
▼ Filters ▲			
Event Name	Leader		Event Type
saba			Meeting ~
After Start Date	Filter By		Virtual Class Session
	Meeting Recording	js 🗸	Select ~
			RESET
Event Name Event Type	Start Date & Time Duration	Leader Course ID	Class ID Event ID Actions
SabaMeeting_IZAWC Meeting	06/21/2020 3:30 1h PM	JKUMAR1	QWQ469797 PLAYBACK
SabaMeeting_QXPXW Meeting	06/21/2020 2:45 15m PM	INTW10	KQF638321 PLAYBACK

Figure 93: New columns on Manage events page

Now manage Saba Meeting recordings from Saba Cloud

Prior to this update, Virtual Event Administrators did not have the option to manage Saba Meeting event recordings from within Saba Cloud. They could only playback the recordings; however, they could not perform any other action on them.

In this update, users with the Virtual Event Administrator role can now manage Saba Meeting event recordings from within Saba Cloud. In addition to playback of recordings, Saba Cloud allows them to perform the following actions:

- Export a recording (as a CCRZ file)
- Delete a recording

To manage recordings, click **Admin > Meetings > Manage Events**, search for the required event, click the dropdown arrow besides the **Playback** action for the required event, and click the new **Manage Recordings** action.

Manage Events							
▼ Filters ▲							
Event Name		Leader				Event Type	
торие						Meeting	~
After Start Date		Filter By				Virtual Class Session	
	Ē	Meeting Re	cordings		\sim	Select	~
							RESET APPLY
Event Name	Event Type	Start Date & Time	Course ID	Class ID		Event ID	Nanage Recording
Mobile Recording	Meeting	2020-11-09				QQS627886	PLAYBACK 🗸
		6:30 PM					
ш							1 - 1 Of 1

Figure 94: New Manage Recordings action

Saba Cloud displays the **Manage Recordings** page. From this page, you can perform various actions such as playback, delete, and export on the recording.

Manage Recordings					
Recording File	Date	Time	Duration	Status	A Export
Mobile Recording (QQS627886)	2020-11-09	6:29 PM	00:00:33	DEFAULT	Delete
III					1 - 1 Of 1

Figure 95: New Manage Recordings page

If an event has multiple recording, you also get the option to set one of them as the default recording. To set the default recording, click **Set Default** under the **Status** column for the required recording. The status for that recording changes to *Default*.

Manage Recordings					
Recording File	Date	Time	Duration	Status	Actions
Room for Jitender Kumar (GSL242853)	26-MAY-2021	5:27 PM	00:00:13	DEFAULT	PLAYBACK 🗸
Room for Jitender Kumar (GSL242853)	26-MAY-2021	12:23 PM	00:00:21	SET DEFAULT	PLAYBACK 🗸
Room for Jitender Kumar (GSL242853)	26-OCT-2020	6:34 PM	00:00:13	SET DEFAULT	PLAYBACK 🗸
ш					1 - 3 Of 3

Figure 96: Set a recording as default

Chapter

9

People

Topics:

- Enhancements to the smart list criteria
- Enhanced page for adding a course to a transcript from a certification
- Display terms and conditions before uploading the profile picture
- Additions to the More Info section of the New Profile page
- New setting to define profile visibility

This section includes the following topics that will guide you through the new features and improvements under People.

Enhancements to the smart list criteria

Prior to this update, when creating a smart list, it was not possible to select people based on their email or person number categories. It was only possible to use their name or username as the criteria.

In this update, the smart list criteria selection has been updated to include the email and person number as the criteria for selecting a person.

Navigate to Admin > People > Manage Smart Lists > New Smart List.

For example, to select a person with an existing email such as ebazan@abc.com, you can select and enter the parameters as follows:

Include > Profile > E-mail > Exactly matching > ebazan@abc.com

Character Limit : 500	ĥ		
world	Q		
			Collapse all 🗸
			् 🗈
rofile v E-mail	 Exactly matc 	v ebazan@abc.com	
'n	ofile	ofile	ofile E-mail E-mail

Figure 97: Smart list criteria selection

By clicking the preview option, you can see if the results match your selection.

Preview			
)ueryText			
			Print Export Modify Table
showing 1 out of 1 re	sults		
First Name	Last Name	Username	Person Type
Eleanor	Bazan	EBAZAN	
			CLOSE
			OLOGE

Figure 98: Preview selection

In a scenario where you are searching for all users from a specific organization, you can search by the e-mail criteria using the Contains operator. For example, all users with csod.com in their e-mail address are shown:

Include > Profile > E-mail > Contains > csod.com

People Home	New Smart List	
> Manage People	Nama August 2003	* = required
> Manage Signup Rules	rvarine "Pilugus Lauz I	
> Rules Engine	Description	
Manage To-Do Lists	Domain* world Q Q	
✓ Manage Smart Lists		
Smart List	Collapse all → Q. B	
Message Center	Include v Profile v E-mail v Contains v csod	
Manage Recommendations	+ Add Statement	
	21 + Add Group	
	PREVIEW SAVE CLOSE	

Figure 99: E-mail criteria with Contains as the operator

When searching by name, if more than one record exists for the same name, you may see duplicate entries. To be certain, you can search by the Person Number category.

To search by the person number field, you can select and enter the parameters as follows:

Include > Profile > Person > Any of > Person number

Note: You need to know the actual number to enter in the search field.

	People Home	Name*	
>	Manage People	Description	
>	Manage Signup Rules	Character Limit : 500	
>	Rules Engine	Domain* world Q	
	Manage To-Do Lists		Collapse all 👻
~	Manage Smart Lists	• Group 1 🖍	۹ 🗈
	Smart List	Include v Profile v Person v All of v 00003736 C 1	
	Manager Capital	Add Statement Eleanor Bazan	
	Message Center	22 + Add Group	
	Manage Recommendations		
		PREVIEW SAVE	CLOSE

Figure 100: Smart list criteria by Person number

The person associated with that number is selected and displayed. You can Preview the selection by selecting Preview before you save.

The search filter label now shows Name, Username, and Person Number as options to locate a person.

SELECT PERSON	×
▼ Hide filters ∨ NAME/USERNAME/PERSON NUMBER EWANG5	
CLEAR FILTERS APPLY FILTERS	
TITLE A emay wang5	
1-1 of 1 CANCEL DONE	

Figure 101: Select Person using the Search filter labels

Enhanced page for adding a course to a transcript from a certification

Prior to this update, when People Administrators tried to add a course from within a certification or curriculum to the user's completed course or transcript, Saba Cloud displayed a popup page with very few fields. Certain fields that were not displayed on the popup page were set to default values internally.

In this update, when People Administrators try to add a course from within a certification or curriculum to the user's completed course or transcript, Saba Cloud displays an enhanced popup page with many additional fields. The fields are not pre-populated or set to default values. You can edit and populate the fields as required.

Note: Prior to this change, the fields 'Date Marked Completed' and 'Registration Date' that were not displayed, were internally defaulted to 'today's date'. With this change, these dates are no longer defaulted to 'today's date'.

To add a course to a transcript from within a certification or curriculum, navigate to **People** > **Manage People > Certifications/Curricula**, find and edit the required user, then click **View Certification** or **View Curricula**. Click the certification name, hover over the course ID, and click the **Add to Completed Course** link.

Status:		0000004853
	Incomplete	ID: 0000004853
Progress:		Offered As: Virtual Classroom,Web-Based
	0 of 1 Learning Ite	View Details
Complete 1 of 1 avai	lable courses and certif	Register for Course
		Add to Completed Course
		0000004852
		000004833

Figure 102: Add to Completed Course link

Saba Cloud displays the enhanced popup page for adding the course to the transcript. Complete the required fields and click **Save**. Saba Cloud marks the course as complete and adds it to the user's transcript.

Edit Item Added to (Completed Course
Course Name	RenTect101
Version	Regrestron
Description	RegTest101
Class Start Date	
Ended/Completed On Date	
Registration Date	
Date Marked Complete*	
Start Time (HH:MM)	
End Time (HH:MM)	
Duration (HH:MM)	
Delivery Type	-Select One- V
Location	00000404
Marked Complete by	<u> </u>

Figure 103: Enhanced popup page for adding a course to transcript

Display terms and conditions before uploading the profile picture

Prior to this update, when users uploaded their picture while activating their Saba Cloud account or while updating their profile, they were not asked for their consent before proceeding with the image upload.

However, Web accessibility guidelines require user consent while uploading their profile picture. To address this requirement, this update provides the capability to configure and show a 'Terms & Conditions' page to users when users upload or change their profile picture during the following:

- While activating their account
- · While updating their profile

Configuration

Pre-requisite

System Administrators must enable the **Terms and Conditions for Login**' setting under **Foundation** service.

If the service is enabled, then System Administrators can configure the new 'Terms & Conditions' page for profile picture.

To create the 'Terms & Conditions' page for a domain, navigate to **Admin > System > Terms** & **Conditions**, click the **New Terms & Conditions** and select the **Type** as 'Profile Picture'.

You can customize the page text and set the frequency of page display. To display the page to users while updating their profile picture, you can set the **Frequency** to 'show always'.

		* = requ
Terms & Conditions Details		
Name*		
Domain*	world Q Q	
Type *	-Select One- -Select One- Login Order Profile Picture	•
Page Text in HTML		
	Powered by Tiny	0 words

Figure 104: Profile Picture type for 'Terms & Conditions' page

Display terms and conditions during account activation

When a user in the selected domain is trying to activate their profile, the profile activation page displays the **Accept Terms And Conditions** check box in the **Your Profile** section. The user needs to select this check box before uploading their profile picture. Only when the check box is selected, the **Choose File** button is enabled.

	Welcome Peter Pan!
Abou	ut You
FIRST	NAME*
Peter	
LAST	NAME*
Pan	
PRIMA	ARY GROUP
Ever	yone ~
8	
Uploa	d a Photo
You ca 150x1	an upload a JPG, BMP or PNG file. The image size must be at least 50 pixels and the file size must be smaller than 3MB.
	ept Terms And Conditions Learn more
Ch	oose File No file chosen
Cho Brief B	oose File No file chosen
Ch Brief B	ept Terms And Conditions Learn more Dose File No file chosen Dio
Ch Brief B	ept Terms And Conditions Learn more oose File No file chosen Nio

Figure 105: The Accept Terms And Conditions checkbox during profile activation

To see more details about the actual 'Terms & Conditions', click the **Learn more** link. The details are displayed in a popup page.

We	elcome Peter Pan!				
— About You ——		_			
FIRST NAME*					
Peter					
LAST NAME*					
Pan					
PRIMARY GROUP					
Everyone	Description				×
Upload a Photo	service. The person must agree to abide by the terms i disclaimer, especially regarding the use of websites. W)f service i ikipedia	in order to use the offered service. Ter	ms of service can also be m	CLOSE
You can upload a JPG, I	BMP or PNG file. The image size must be at least				
Accept Terms And Co	andition Learn more				
Choose File No file	chosen				
Blief Blo					
	ACTIVAT				

Figure 106: Terms & Conditions popup page

Display terms and conditions during profile update

When a user tries to update their profile picture in their profile, the profile image page displays the **Accept Terms And Conditions** check box. The user needs to select this check box before uploading or changing their profile picture. Only when the check box is selected, the **Choose File** button is enabled.



Figure 107: The Accept Terms And Conditions checkbox during profile update

To see more details about the actual 'Terms & Conditions', click the **Learn more** link. The details are displayed in a popup page.



Figure 108: Terms & Conditions popup page

Additions to the More Info section of the New Profile page

In this update, the More Info section of the New Profile page has been updated to include the following new fields for the user's current job:

- Job Description A brief summary of the job description.
- Job Responsibilities Details of the responsibilities assigned to this job.

On the New Profile page, click the More Info link to launch the popup.



Figure 109: More Info section showing Job Description and Responsibilities

New setting to define profile visibility

In this update, a new setting called 'Profile Visibility' has been added to the ACL Security setting under System Admin which determines who can view the profile page of an internal or external user.

Your System Admin can enable this setting by navigating to **Admin > System > Manage** Security > Profile ACL Configuration.

Possible values are:

- All can view
- Some can view with following sub-option:
 - · Self Can View (read-only).
 - Managers Can View / Cannot View
 - · Admins Can View / Cannot View
 - Peers Can View / Cannot View
 - Others Can View / Cannot view

Note: By default, this value will be All can view for all users.

Admin / System / Manage Security / Profile ACL configuration System Home							
Configure System	Profile ACL (Attribute Control List) configuration						
Manage Notifications							
Manage Search	SELECT: erson, Internal Person, External	· ©					
Manage Integrations	Profile Visibility						
Manage Security	PROFILE VISIBILITY	ALL CAN VIEW					
		All can View					
Security Roles	Basic Information	Some can View					
Domains	FIRST NAME	Self: Can View 🗸					
Profile ACL configuration	MIDDLE NAME	Manager: Can View ~					
10.000	LAST NAME	Admin: Can View ~					
IP Security		Peers: Can View 🗸					
Manage Branding	USERNAME	Others: Can View ~					
Managa Engangement Toyle		SAVE Can View					
manage crigagement toois	810	Cannot View					

Figure 110: Profile Visibility setting in ACL

It's possible to set the Profile Visibility to one setting for internal persons, and a different setting for external persons.

Note: The 'Profile Visibility' setting applies to the new profile page only.

Chapter 10

Performance

Topics:

- New Check-in overview page
- New configuration to view past check-ins
- Performance features now enabled by default

This section includes the following topics that will guide you through the new features and improvements under Performance.

New Check-in overview page

In this update, there is a new page that lets you view the check-ins that are currently in progress and view the details of any past check-ins. If you are a manager, you can use this overview page to see all the check-ins you have had with your direct reports and which ones are in progress. As an employee, you can have check-ins with your direct manager, an alternate manager, or a mentor. Check-ins between an employee and their direct manager are automatically created. You can only manually create check-ins between an employee and their direct manager and their alternate manager or between a mentor and a mentee.

To enable this feature, navigate to Admin > System > Configure System > Performance > Check-ins. Ensure the option Enables the check-in overview page and allows alternate managers, mentors, and managers to create check-ins is set to 'On'. By default, this configuration is set to 'Off'.

Note: This service is not domain aware, so configuration is required only for the World domain. It will be 'On' or 'Off' for all users.

To see the new check-in overview page, navigate to **Me** > **Check-ins**.

Check-ins CREATE NEW CHECK-IN				
Current Past				
Search by name	Q All check-ins	~		
Check-in with	Relationship	No. of items	Last check-in on	Actions
👮 Judy Womack	Direct Reportee	11	18-AUG-2021	VIEW
Andre Smith	Direct Reportee	10	18-AUG-2021	VIEW
Joan Smith	Direct Reportee	9	18-AUG-2021	VIEW
				1 - 3 Of 3

Create a new check-in - If you are a direct manager, alternate manager, or mentor, you can create a check-in with your direct report, alternate report, or mentee. If you are an employee, you can create a check-in with your alternate manager. If you are a mentee, you can create a check-in with your mentor.

Figure 111: Check-in overview page

Check-ins CREATE NEW CHECK-IN							
Current Past							
Search by name	۹	All check-ins	^				
Check-in with	Relations	All check-ins Check-ins for myself Check-ins for others		Last c	check-in on	Actions	
3 Judy Womack	Direct Rep			18-AU	JG-2021	VIEW	
Andre Smith	Direct Rep	ortee	10	18-AU	JG-2021	VIEW	
Joan Smith	Direct Rep	ortee	9	18-AU	JG-2021	VIEW	
							1 - 3 Of 3

Filter the list of check-ins

All check-ins - Shows all the current and past check-ins.

Check-ins for myself - Shows all the check-ins held with the Direct Manager, Alternate Manager, or Mentor of the logged-in user.

Check-ins for others - Shows all the check-ins where the logged-in user is the Direct Manager, Alternate Manager, or Mentor.

Check-ins CREATE NEW CHECK-IN				
Current Past				
Search by name	Q, All check-ins	~		
Check-in with	Relationship	No. of items	Last check-in on	Actions
👂 Judy Womack	Direct Reportee	11	18-AUG-2021	VIEW
Andre Smith	Direct Reportee	10	18-AUG-2021	VIEW
Joan Smith	Direct Reportee	9	18-AUG-2021	VIEW
				1 - 3 Of 3

View past check-ins

Check-ins CREATE NEW CHECK-IN				
Current Past				
Search by name	Q All check-ins	~		
Check-in with	Relationship	No. of items	Last check-in on	Actions
🞐 Judy Womack	Direct Reportee	11	18-AUG-2021	VIEW
Andre Smith	Direct Reportee	10	18-AUG-2021	VIEW
Joan Smith	Direct Reportee	9	18-AUG-2021	VIEW
				1 - 3 Of 3

View the details of past check-ins

New configuration to view past check-ins

In this update, System Admins can configure whether direct managers can see all past check-ins held by previous managers or can only see check-ins they hold as a direct manager.

This feature is set to 'Off' by default for new customers but set to 'On' by default for existing customers. You can configure it here: Admin > System > Configure System > Performance > Check-ins > Enables direct managers to view past check-ins.

Note: This service is not domain aware, so configuration is required only for the World domain. It will be 'On' or 'Off' for all users.

Performance features now enabled by default

The following features are now enabled by default:

- goal 'snapshot'
- new impression and endorsement workflow

Note: Support for the old goal workflow and the old review PDF has now been deprecated.

You can find out more about the UI-UX update schedule on the Online Community.

Goal 'snapshot'

In this update, the goal 'snapshot' feature is now enabled by default. The goal snapshot feature means that when a review is submitted, it retains a 'snapshot' of the goal details as they were when the review was done.

This feature is enabled by default, but you can turn it off here: Admin > System > Configure System > Microsites > Saba Cloud > Site properties > Performance configurations > Snapshot Goals and Business Card Title in Reviews.

Notes:

- Profile ACL (Attribute Control List) configurations are not applicable for snapshots.
- This only affects reviews that are submitted while the feature is enabled.

New impression and endorsement workflow

In this update, the new impression and endorsement workflow is now enabled by default.

This feature is enabled by default, but you can turn it off here: Admin > System > Configure System > Microsites > Saba Cloud > Site properties > Performance configurations > Launch Impressions & Endorsement flow in New User Interface.

Chapter **11**

REST API

Topics:

- New REST APIs
- Updated REST APIs

This section includes the following topics that will guide you through the new features and improvements under REST API.

New REST APIs

API to retrieve the locales

The following REST API is now available to support retrieving the locales available in the system.

GET LOCALES

Overview

Returns all the locales in the system along with their details.

Requires OAuth

No

Method

GET

URL

https://<hostname-api.sabacloud.com>/v1/locales

URL (Example with optional parameters)

https://*<hostname-api.sabacloud.com>/v*1/locales?enabled=true&visible=true &id=local000000000000001&java_locale=en_US&name=English

Calling Options Table 20: Calling Options

Name	Description	Default Value	Data Type	Required?
enabled	Get a list of enabled locales	true	string	No
visible	Get a list of visible locales	true	string	No
id	Get locale details for the ID	loc- al000000000000000000000000000000000000	string	No
java_locale	Get locale details for the java_locale	en_us	string	No
name	Get the locale details for a particular locale	English	string	No
Return Values

[_	
L	{	<pre>"id": "local0000000000000001", "localeNumber": "1", "sortOrder": null, "dateFormat": "DD-MMM-YYYY", "startDayOfWeek": "Monday", "timeFormat": "H:mm a", "numberPattern": "###,##", "currencyPattern": "#,##0.##", "fullNameformat": "First Name-Last Name", "textDirection": "100", "localeNameformat": "First Name-Last Name", "textDirection": "100", "localeName": "English", "defaultLocale": true, "java_locale": true, "java_locale": true, "visible": true, "languageid":{ "displayName": "English", "id": "lange00000000000001"}</pre>

Attachment APIs to support additional objects

The following REST APIs are now available to support additional objects such as Transcript, Checklist and HeldChecklist Item.

GET ATTACHMENT RESOURCE

Overview

Returns the attachment resource details based on the content resource's ID.

Requires OAuth

No

Method

GET

URL

https://<hostname-api.sabacloud.com>/v1/attachments/content/:id

Calling Options

Table 21: Calling Options

Name	Description	Sample Value	Data Type	Required?
id	Content Resource ID	anes000000000000000000000000000000000000	string	Yes

Return Values

```
{
  "@type": "org.json.simple.JSONObject",
  "name": " environment.txt",
  "Attached By": {
    "@type": "org.json.simple.JSONObject",
    "displayName": "uone",
    "id": "emplo0000000000000000"
    },
    "id": "cnres0000000000000000"
}
```

GET ALL ATTACHMENTS FOR AN OBJECT

Overview

Returns the details of all the attachments based on the owner's ID.

Requires OAuth

No

Method

GET

URL

https://<hostname-api.sabacloud.com>/v1/attachments/attachment/content/:ownerid

Calling Options

Table 22: Calling Options

Name	Description	Sample Value	Data Type	Required?
ownerid	Owner ID	hck- im000000000002040	string	Yes

Return Values

```
"@type": "org.json.simple.JSONObject",
"name": "Content Guide.doc",
"Attached By": {
    "@type": "org.json.simple.JSONObject",
    "displayName": "uone",
    "id": "emplo00000000000000000"
    },
    "id": "cnres0000000000001021"
    }
]
```

ADD ATTACHMENT TO OBJECT

Overview

Allows adding an attachment to an object such as Transcript, Checklist and HeldChecklist Item.

Requires OAuth

No

Content-type Multipart/form-data

Method

POST

URL

https://<hostname-api.sabacloud.com>/v1/attachments/attachment/content/:id

Calling Options

Table 23: Calling Options

Name	Description	Sample Value	Data Type	Required?
id	Owner ID	hck- im000000000002040	string	Yes
file1	For uploading the file.	environment.txt	file	Yes

Return Values

```
{
  "@type": "org.json.simple.JSONObject",
  "name": "environment.txt",
  "id": "cnres00000000001030"
}
```

DELETE ATTACHMENT RESOURCE

Overview

Deletes the attachment resource details based on the content resource's ID.

Requires OAuth

No

Method

DELETE

URL

https://<hostname-api.sabacloud.com>/v1/attachments/content/:id

Calling Options

Table 24: Calling Options

Name	Description	Sample Value	Data Type	Required?
id	Content Resource ID	an es 000000000000000000000000000000000000	string	Yes

Return Values

204

Updated REST APIs

Find Certifications and Find Curricula APIs to return related information

The following REST APIs are now updated with new display parameters to support retrieving related information:

FIND DETAILS OF CERTIFICATION/CURRICULUM

https://<hostname-api.sabacloud.com>/v1/certification ?f=(owners,certification_templates,audienceTypes,keywords,categories,evaluations)&q=(:query)

https://<hostname-api.sabacloud.com>/v1/curriculum ?f=(owners,certification_templates,audienceTypes,keywords,categories,evaluations)&q=(:query) • FIND DETAILS OF CERTIFICATION/CURRICULUM (Using POST - Range based search)

https://<hostname-api.sabacloud.com>/v1/certification/searchQuery ?f=(owners,certification_templates,audienceTypes,keywords,categories,evaluations)

https://<hostname-api.sabacloud.com>/v1/curriculum/searchQuery ?f=(owners,certification_templates,audienceTypes,keywords,categories,evaluations)

You can pass display parameters to these APIs to retrieve related information. The following display fields are supported:

- owners
- certification_templates
- audienceTypes
- keywords
- categories
- evaluations

A limit of 100 records per page is applied if you use any of these display parameters. Data for these fields is returned in case of includeDetails=true as well as includeDetails=false.

Return Values (using display fields)

```
£
  "securityDomain":{
    "id":"dómin000000000000001",
    "displayName":"world"
  },
"customValues":{
    "custom0":null,
    "custom1":null,
    "custom2":nulĺ,
    "custom3":null,
    "custom4":null,
    "custom5":null,
    "custom6":null.
    "custom7":null,
"custom8":null,
    "custom9":null
  },
"learningevent_id":"200073",
  "vendor_id":null,
  "notify_before":null,
  "valid till":null,
  "createGroupPolicyVal":false,
  "paths":[
    £
      "learningModules":[
         £
           "track id":"track000000000200200",
           "learningInterventions":[
             {
                "owner id":null,
                "is_reqd":false,
               "sequence":1,
"is_waiver":false,
                'part id":{
                  "id":"cours00000000200000".
                  "displayName":"Downloadable Product 1"
```

"id":"edupl000000000201162" }], "name":"module1", "is_reqd":true, "notes":null, "sequence":1, "is_waiver":true, "reqd_no_of_items":1, "id": "ceqrp0000000000200200" }], "name":"path1", from":nu "disc_from":null, "is_path_recalculation_done":false, "isrecertification_track":false, "is_default_path":true, "id":"track00000000200200" }], "deepLinkUrls":["http://localhost/Saba/Web spf/Social/common/learningeventdetail/crtfy000000000200180"], "keywords":[£ "id":"kywrd00000000200780", "displayName":"key1" }, { "id":"kywrd00000000200781", "displayName":"key3" } ["]parent":null, "history_lookup_policy":"CheckHistoryUptoExpiredRevoked", "past_credit_days":null, "name":"abc", "description":"", "version":null, "group":null, "status":"INEFFECT", "avl_from":"2009-07-10T00:00:00.000+0530", "featured":false, "disc from":null, "target_days":0, "id":"crtfy00000000200180", "created_on":"2009-07-10T03:05:52.000+0530", "updated_on":"2021-05-20T16:50:01.000+0530", "created_by":"uone", "updated_by":"uone", "grace_period":null, "reAssignedTargetDays":null, "OneClickRegistration":false,

```
"enforce_module_seq":false,
```

```
"self_register":true,
"disp_callcenter":true,
```

```
"disp_callcenter":true
"disp_learner":true,
```

```
"enforce_target_date":false,
```

```
"auto_launch":false,
```

```
"enforce_required_course_reg":false,
  "associations":{
    "owner":[
      Ł
        "displayName":"Two User",
"id":"emplo000000000001001"
      },
{
         "displayName":"Two1 User1",
        "id": emplo000000000001031"
      }
    ],
"evaluation":[
    ],
"attachment":[
      £
        "private":false,
         "attachmentType":"file",
         "name":"certification",
         "id":"notdc000000000234615",
        "doc_type":"JPEG",
"locale":{
           "id":"local000000000000001",
           "displayName":"English"
        },
"category":"image/jpeg",
         "content":"/Saba/api/component?ssp=pageIsIgnored&dolt=showAttachment
&showbinary=true&attachld=.-217C2F34FA8A26FD161326986B437788555739A9A40D1A11A542DBF9956BC1EF..
-&mimeType=image/jpeg&sessId=.-.5C0E2F6B486305400FC69BB6BD058613CFA53C0385E61D
         E9B306B24610EE1F6606EBE26BF479A6626ACEE864300E8D55-.-"
      },
{
        "private":false,
"attachmentType":"file",
"name":"certificationCUSTOM_RES_280p140",
         "id":"notdc00000000234616",
        "doc_type":"PNG",
"locale":{
           "id":"local000000000000001",
           "displayName":"English"
        },
"category":"image/png",
         "url":null,
```

"content":"/Saba/api/component?ssp=pageIsIgnored&dolt=showAttachment&showbinary=true

```
&attachd=-217C2F34FA8A26FD161326986B4377889BD9300A12DA81228A775FE420069BE2--&mimeType=image/png&sessd=.
```

-500E2F6B486305400F039EB6ED0586B0FA530038EE6DE9B306B24610EETF6606EEE26BF479A6626AOEE864300E8D55-."

}], "certification_template":[{

```
"displayName":"System Defined Template for Certifications",
         "id":<sup>i</sup>crttp000000000000002"
      },
{
         "displayName":"System Defined Template for Recurring Courses",
         "id":"crttp0000000000000004"
      }
    ],
"audienceType":[
      £
         "displayName":"subaud0021",
         "id": seatc0000000000001122"
      },
{
         "displayName":"aud_1",
         "id": audie000000000000001021"
      }
    ],
"keyword":[
      {
         "displayName":"key1",
         "id":"kywrd00000000000200780"
      },
      Ł
         "displayName":"key3",
         "id":"kywrd000000000200781"
      }
    ],
"category":[
      {
         "displayName":"123_CAT_DI",
         "id":"categ0000000000001663"
      },
{
         "displayName":"Business Intelligence",
"id":"categ000000000001479"
      }
    ]
  },
"expiryType":"duration",
  "isExpiresInMonths":false,
  "locale":{
    "id":"local000000000000001",
    "displayName":"English"
  recertifyDays":0
}
```

Resource Assignment APIs now include additional information

The following REST APIs are now updated to return additional information:

- GET RESOURCE FOR A GIVEN OFFERING Now provides ?includeDetails=:includeDetails parameter. Set this to true to retrieve a list of all resources for a class with all the details for a resource as displayed in UI.
- RETRIEVE ASSIGNMENT DETAILS Now returns "resourceNo" as part of the response.

GET RESOURCE FOR A GIVEN OFFERING

https://<*hostname-api.sabacloud.com*>/v1/learning/resourceassign/ :offeringId/assignedresources**?includeDetails=:includeDetails**

Return Values (includeDetails=true)

```
Γ
  "list",
  L
    {
      "@type": "com.fasterxml.jackson.databind.node.ObjectNode",
      "quantity": 1,
      "resourceNo": "P4-001",
      "purpose": {
        "displayName": "2 CPU UltraSparc",
        "id": "recat000000000000006"
      },
"resource": {
        "rate": "USD 100",
"displayName": "00200000",
        "id": "equip000000000200000"
      },
"id": "assnm000000000200409",
      "offeringId": "class000000000201618",
      "resourceType": "Equipments",
      "href":
"http://localhost/Saba/api/businesscomponent/learning/resourceassign/assnm000000000200409"
    },
{
      "@type": "com.fasterxml.jackson.databind.node.ObjectNode",
      "quantity": 1,
      "resourceNo": "001000",
      "purpose": {
        "displayName": "Owner",
        "id": "recat000000000000009"
      },
"resource": {
        "rate": "USD 50",
        "qualificationLevel": null,
        "displayName": "User One"
        "id": "emplo000000000001000"
      },
"id": "assnm000000000200407",
      "offeringId": "class00000000201618",
      "resourceType": "Person",
      "href": "http://localhost/Saba/api/businesscomponent
      /learning/resourceassign/assnm000000000200407"
    }
 ]
]
```

RETRIEVE ASSIGNMENT DETAILS

https://<hostname-api.sabacloud.com>/v1/learning/ resourceassign/:assignId?ignoreConflicts=true

Return Values

```
{
  "@type": "com.saba.rest.businesscomponent.impl.ResourceAssignmentRESTDTO",
  "id": "assnm000000000200407",
  "offering": {
"@type": "ServiceObjectReference",
     "id": "class0000000000201618",
     "displayName": "1111LT102"
  },
  "resource": {

"@type": "ServiceObjectReference",

"id": "emplo000000000000000,
     "displayName": "User One"
  "displayName": "Owner"
  },
"quantity": 1,
'a": pull,
  "role": núll,
  "selectSessions": [
     "java.util.HashSet",
       £
         "@type": "ServiceObjectReference",
"id": "timel00000000004664",
         "displayName": ""
       }
    ]
  ], <sup>-</sup>
"unSelectSessions": null,
  "resourcetype": "Person",
  "allSessions": false,
  "resourceNo": "001000"
}
```

Support for the enrollmentStatus field in the Enrollment Search API

The following REST APIs are now updated to include order_status, enrollment_status and updated_on as criteria_field / conditions fields:

- SEARCH ENROLLMENTS BASED ON GIVEN CRITERIA (USING POST RANGE BASED SEARCH)
- SEARCH ENROLLMENTS BASED ON GIVEN CRITERIA

Chapter 12

Social

Topics:

- Support for search within the enhanced Workspace
- Additional search options for Workspace in global search
- View details option on the Workspace page
- Ability to reuse images in
 Workspace
- New search by domain field added to the user generated content page
- New and Edit page options on the new Workspace UI
- Copy URL option added to
 Workspace page
- Workspace Enhanced view

This section includes the following topics that will guide you through the new features and improvements under Social.

Support for search within the enhanced Workspace

Prior to this update, it was not possible to perform a search within the enhanced workspace. Searches were possible only from the global search. In this update, the search feature is added to the enhanced Workspace page.

In the enhanced Workspace page, you can search using the Workspace Tagline, Workspace Home Page Content, Page Title and Page Text.



Figure 112: Search option on the Workspace page

Enter your search term inside the text box and click enter or the **Search** button to see the results.

HOME ME ME:TIME PE	OPLE RECRUIT SABA HUB	GROUPS ADMIN	
Generate URL Clear All	5 Results found	Sort by Relevance	✓ Results per page 25 ✓ III III
RESOURCE TYPE	\frown		
All Areas Pages (6)			
OWNERS	Contact Portlet Data Verification	Newly created page	Page2
Sandeep Chaudhary (6)	Contact Portlet Data Verification desc 5 Pages Last posted on 08/07/2021 06:04 AM Autho Sandeep Chaudhary	Last updated on: 08/05/2021 05:47 AM Status: Published Author:Sandeep Chaudhary	Last updated or: 08/05/2021 03:51 AM Status: Published Author:Sandeep Chaudhary
	****	✓ \$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$	प्रेसेप्रेयेने EDIT

Figure 113: Workspace search result

Additional search options for Workspace in global search

Prior to this update, from global search, you could only search for enhanced Workspaces using the Workspace Title and Workspace descriptions. In this update, you can search for Workspaces using the Workspace Title, Description, Tagline, and Home Page content also.

saba ⁷⁴ Cloud	✓ Contact Portlet Data Verification	X 🗱 Brows	e Collections Shop Hi, user one
HOME ME ME:TIME	NY TEAM PEOPLE RECRUIT SAB	A HUB GROUPS ADMIN	
Generate URL Clear All	12 Results found for 'Contact Portlet Data'	Sort by Relevance	✓ Results per page 25 ✓ III III
RESOURCE TYPE All Areas Pages (12)			
CATEGORY	Contact Portlet Data Verification	Contact Portlet Data Verification Page 1	Bad Data Issue Check1
New category 1 (1)	Contact Portlet Data Verification desc S Pages Last posted on 08/07/2021 06:34 PM Author:	Last updated on: 08/05/2021 04:18 PM Status: Published Author:Sandeep Chaudhary	Last updated on: 09/29/2020 11:22 AM Status: Published Authoruser one
OWNERS		00000 EDIT	****
Rajan Mistry (5) Vabhav Doshi (3) Sandeep Chaudhary (2) user one (2) TAGS			

Figure 114: Global search by Workspace title

View details option on the Workspace page

Prior to this update, Social Admins were only able to edit Workspaces by clicking on the title from the search result, but they didn't have a direct option to launch the detail page.

In this update, the **View details** link has been added to the **Action** menu on the **User Generated Content** page to click and directly view and edit Workspace details.

Social Home	11/11 Workspace	Workspace	world	Certify Resource Change Domain View detail
Manage Groups	111_Session_1	Virtual Event	world	Flag Resource Certify Resource Change Domain
User-generated Content	111_Session_1	Virtual Event	world	Flag Resource Certify Resource Change Domain
Manage Videos	111_Session_2	Virtual Event	world	Flag Resource Certify Resource Change Domain

Figure 115: View details link on Social Resources

However, the **View details** link only shows if the '**Can access and edit workspace and pages**' privilege is enabled under the System Component for a security role.

Your System Admin can enable the setting from:

Admin > System > Manage Security > Security Role > Components > System > Can access and edit workspace and pages

Security Roles		Can access and edit workspace and pages	Show Roles
----------------	--	---	------------

Figure 116: Can access and view privilege

Note: The privilege is enabled by default for the Super User's system component. Super Users with this specific privilege can edit any Workspaces and Pages available in the system from end user flow.

Ability to reuse images in Workspace

Prior to this update, Workspace authors and admins were not able to reuse images added to a Workspace in other Workspaces. In some scenarios, multiple images had to be manually reloaded. Additionally, where images were reused, if the original image was removed from the original page or flagged for some reason, the images on subsequent pages were also not displayed.

In this update, you can reuse images in multiple workspaces and pages. A new property setting is added to enable the image reuse in other pages, regardless of the original image being removed or flagged.

The property setting can be accessed from:

Admin > System > Configure System > Microsites > Site Properties> Social > Reuse image references

When this property is set to 'true' the images can be reused between multiple workspaces or pages and by setting it to false, the images are not reused. The default value is 'true'.

Reuse image references	true	
	Set the value to true/false to reuse the image ref	erences in multiple pages/workspaces.

Figure 117: Reuse images setting

New search by domain field added to the user generated content page

Prior to this release, Social Admins were not able to search for user-generated content by the domain field.

In this update, a new field called **Domain** has been added to the **Configure Search** option on the **User-generated Content** page to enable Admins to search for content using the Domain filter.

To search for content using this option, navigate to:

Admin > Social Admin > User generated Content > Configure Search > <Domain>

Enter the Domain name and click Search.

All content created within that domain appears.

Social Home	User-generated Content						
fanage Groups	Name		Туре			-Select (Dne- v
ser-generated Content	Tags		Author				ର ପ
anana Vidana	Language	ର୍ ପ୍	Shared with (Grou	p,Video Chanr	nel,Conferenc	:e)	
anage videos	Updated On >		Domain			world	<u> </u>
Reassign Resources	Microlearning						
eatured Categories	Social Resources					New Resource	12345 Print Export Modify Table
	Name		Type	Status	State	Domain	Actions
	29thJan		Issue	New		world	Flag Resource Certify Resource
							Change Domain Delete Resource
	30-Advanced SAS Programmi		Video Content			world	Change Domain Delete Resource Flag Resource Certify Resource Change Domain Delete Resource

Figure 118: Domain search results

New and Edit page options on the new Workspace UI

Prior to this update in the enhanced Workspace view, the create New Page and Edit Page options still launched the Classic page for the user to complete their tasks.

In this update, when you click **New Page** or **Edit Page** on the Workspace Page, you see the enhanced Workspace UI pages to complete your tasks.

When you click on **New Page**, a blank New Page launches and you can add page title, description, and other details to create the page.

HOME	ME	ME:TIME	MY TEAM	PEOPLE	RECRUIT	SABA HUB	GROUPS	ADMIN		
< All Workspa Custon	ner Si	UCCESS C				EDIT WORK:	SPACE ADD	WORKSPACE	Search this Workspace	SEARCH
Announcement EDIT Customer conference is planned for Jan 2022.										
New Pa	ge									
Content Locale*	s Sett	tings	✓ Title [●]	Usability Test	ing Results					
BI	⊻ S	E 2 3 1		* (= * 111	* More					

Figure 119: New Page on a Workspace

Click on **Save** to create the page in draft. Click on **Publish** to publish on the Workspace and share with the people you select. You can choose the **Disable sharing** option to restrict the page sharing by other users.

ype person to share with here 🔞 🗸		
SHARED WITH	ROLE	ACTIONS
Migration Community	Editor	1×

Figure 120: New Page share and publish options

Click on **Edit Page** to make changes to existing pages.

Under **Contents**, you can update the title, description and change the Locale for the page and so on.

Edit Page
Contents Settings
Locale* English X V Title* Task Force Team page
B I U S E Ξ Ξ Ξ Ξ Ξ Ξ Ξ · Ξ · Ⅲ · More
This page will contain details on the activities of the TASK Force Team.

Figure 121: Edit contents

Under the **Settings** Tab, you can change the permissions, notifications settings, change the language selection, select a folder, and add attachments.

Contents Settings		
Permission		Send notification to
Disable sharing (others are not allowed to share this resource)		People listed
Select O, Viewer	✓ A00	Members of groups listed
Who has access Role	Action	Advanced settings
Migration Community Editor	~ ×	Author :
	1 - 1 Of 1	userone
		Language: English
		Folder :
		Select Q
Attachments		
There are no files attached		ATTACH FILE

Figure 122: Edit Page settings tab

Copy URL option added to Workspace page

Prior to this update, Workspace Admins and users were not able to access and launch Page URLs directly. They had to launch the associated Workspace and then navigate to specific pages.

In this update, the Copy URL link option is added to the Action menu bar.

< All Workspaces				
Product Planning	EDIT WORKSPACE	ADD WORKSPACE	Search this Workspace	SEARCH
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
Announcement				EDIT
Announcement is not set.				
Home Flagship products +				EDIT PAGE
Flagship products				
Published by User One on 09/09/2021 to Product Planning Last updated by User One on 09	0/09/2021 to Version 1			
Products in planning.				
☆☆☆☆☆ ⊯uk≊ < s		Add To Folders		
		Copy URL		

Figure 123: Copy URL link

Click on **Copy URL**. You will see the link for that page in the popup. Copy the link and directly paste it on a browser to launch the page.

Copy URL	×
https://sampleURLfordemo/app/workspce/details	
- ОЗЕГОЛЕ - ПЕ КАПЛОЗ АГЕ ЕХСЕЛЕН	

Figure 124: Copy URL

Workspace Enhanced view

As part of our ongoing effort to enhance and modernize the user experience, the Workspace page redesign continues. In this update the following updates are added to the Workspace new UI page:

- All Workspaces link at the top left corner
- Can edit workspace home page content from enhanced Workspace view
- Create a New Page and Edit a New Page
- Attachment option to the portlet configuration
- Edit option for comments

HOME ME ME:TIME MY TEAM PEOPLE RECRUIT SABA HUB	GROUPS ADMIN
< All Workspaces New	EDIT WORKSPACE Search this Workspace SEARCH
Announcement	
Announcement is not set.	EDIT
Home Task Force Team + .	EDIT PAGE
Welcome!	
Just click the "New Page" button to quickly and easily create and share content with others. Page	es allow you to publish important information or update content in a collaborative way.
交合合合 員 воокамак Ра яла く сектару ち тла :	

Figure 125: Workspace Edit option

The Workspace Edit page displays in the new UI and you can make changes to the Header section, Parent and Child Workspaces, Home Page Content, Announcement section, Permissions, and the Portlet Configurations. Under Portlets Configuration, you can now set the Attachments Portlet also.

Announcement portl	t on workspace	
Announcement port	t on pages	
Contacts Portlet		
Attachments Portlet		
_		

Figure 126: Portlet Configuration for Attachments

Like the Workspace options, the Pages within the Workspace now has the New Page and Edit Page buttons. By clicking on them, you can either create a new page for the selected Workspace or Edit the page that you select.

	New											
	Page											
Home +											EDIT	PAGE
Welcome!												
Just click the "New	Page" button to qui	ckly and easily	y create and sh	are content	vith others	Pages allow ye	ou to publish ir	mportant informa	ation or update	content in a c	ollaborative v	vay.
****	ВОСКМАЯК	PP FLAG	✓ CERTIFY	🗣 TAG	:							

Figure 127: New Page and Edit Page options

The Comments section on the page now has the edit option.

Home +.
Welcome!
Just click the "New Page" button to quickly and easily create and share content with others. Pages allow you to publish important information or update content in a collaborative way.
★★★★ ■ BOOKMARK P FLAG ✓ CERTIFY � TAG
User One: The Ratings are excellent.
Edit
Edit option

Figure 128: Edit comments

Chapter 13

System

Topics:

- Data Integration
- Configure the SameSite
 attribute for cookies issued
 by Saba Cloud

This section includes the following topics that will guide you through the new features and improvements under System.

Data Integration

Option to select PGP keys to encrypt data import log files

Prior to this update, System Admins were able to only use the default Pretty Good Privacy (PGP) keys to encrypt log files during data import. In this update, a new option called the **PGP Encryption Key** (Data Import Logs) is added to the data import screen.

This new option allows you to choose a specific key from a list of uploaded keys to encrypt the import log file.

Note: The **PGP Encryption Key** (Data Import Logs) is enabled only if the **Encrypt Data Import Log files** feature on the PGP configuration page is turned ON .

When the **Encrypt Data Import Log Files** feature is ON, the data import log files will be encrypted with the default keys even if additional keys are not uploaded by the System Admin.

	Ad System Home	imin / System / Mana	age Integrations / Integration Studio								
>	Configure System	New Job									
>	Manage Notifications										AUDIT DETAILS
>	Manage Search	Job Name*	New_Import								
v	Manage Integrations	Description		1							
	Integration Studio	Delimiter*									
	Monitor Data Extract	Mapping	·								
	Web Services (APIs)	PGP Encryption Key(Data Import Logs)*	Default PGP Encryption Key	1	0						
	Public Profile	Send Job Summary	Default PGP Encryption Key	il.							
	PGP Configuration	LIST OF OBJECTS	Key123							Add Objects	
	API Dashboard	SEQUENCE . UP	key 123	E					PREFIX	ACTION	
>	Manage Security		key123)bj	jects	to s	elect and add objects to t	the job	b.		
>	Manage Branding	SCHEDULE	new key	1							
>	Manage Engagement Tools	Frequency* From Date*	test				Every* To Date*	24 h	ours	~	
	SAML SSO Errors	Time*					Timezone*			~	
>	Monitor Background Jobs	CONNECTIONS							New C	onnection	

Figure 129: Option to choose PGP key for encryption

You can only choose Active keys to encrypt the import log; however, if a key that is already added to a job is changed to Inactive state, then the job is not affected.

Audit capability added to price or rate change in data import

Prior to this update, data import did not capture auditing in specific scenarios.

In this update, if auditing is enabled on a component (for example: Price List entry), it will be captured in the data import as well.

The following objects are impacted for the price range audit:

- Offering template PRICE
- ILT Offering PRICE

- WBT Offering PRICE
- Cert/curricula Path description

The following objects are impacted for the rate change audit:

- Person, Internal RATE
- Person, External RATE
- Equipment RATE
- Classroom RATE

Ability to remove path, module, or learning elements using data import

Prior to this update, Curriculum data import did not support the removal of Path, Module, or Learning elements.

In this update, a new column header called CURR_ACTION has been added to the Curriculum data import template with the following keywords to provide associated actions:

- REMOVE_PATH removes the existing path specified in the curricula record with all its module and learning elements.
- REMOVE_MODULE removes the existing module specified in the curricula record with all its learning elements.
- REMOVE_ELEMENT removes the existing learning element specified in the curricula record.

You can access the template from Admin > System > Manage Integrations > Integration Studio > Configure > Object Name (Curriculum- in this example) > Download Samples.

4	AA	AA AB AC AD		AE	AF	AG 🔺	
1							
2							
3							
5	MODULE_SEQUENCE	COURSE_ELEMENT	COURSE_VERSION	CURR_ELEMENT	ELEMENT_SEQUENCE	CURR_ACTION	LOCALE
6	Module Sequence	Course	version	curriculum	Learning Element Sequence	N/A	locale
7	Integer	string(255)	string(50)	string(255)	Integer		string(255)
8	module on UI for provided path. Expected data in numbers 1,2,3.If the sequence	Course number of the course t	VERSION of COURSE must be used to refer correct course. "COURSE_VERSION" will still be nullable (non-mandatory)	name of the curriculum that ne	learning element on UI. Expected data in numbers 1,2,3. If the sequence numbers are incorrect	remove existing Path/module or elements present in certification. Expected values are :	Locale will accept java_lo
9	1	element1	version1	element1		REMOVE_PATH	english
10 11 12 13 14 15 16	9999999	SKIP	SKIP	SKIP	9999999		SKIP
	curriculum List	Of Value					

Figure 130: Curriculum data import template

Configure the SameSite attribute for cookies issued by Saba Cloud

In this update, System Admins can configure the SameSite attribute for cookies issued by Saba Cloud using the **Default value for SameSite attribute for issuing cookies** property available under **System > Configure Systems > Microsites > Saba Cloud > Security**.

The SameSite attribute informs Web browsers when and how to execute cookies in first-party or third-party situations. SameSite helps the Web browsers identify whether to allow a cookie to be accessed.

Possible values for this property are:

• **Lax** - This is case-sensitive. Enables only the first-party cookies to be sent or accessed. Cookie executes when the domain in the URL is same as the cookie's domain (first-party).

Note: When SameSite attribute is set to Lax, some third-party site requests and integrations such as eSignature actions with SAML, PXP content launch, Salesforce integration and CreateTool content publish may not work. These examples are indicative and should not be considered as an exhaustive list.

 none (default) - Allows the cookie data to be shared with third parties or external sites (for advertising, embedded content, and so on). There are no domain limitations. Third-party cookies can execute.

Note: After modifying the property value, we recommend clearing your browser cache to ensure that the updated property value is immediately applied.

This enhancement provides more control to the System Admins for cookie security for their site.

Chapter **14**

Walkthroughs

Topics:

New walkthroughs

This section includes topics to guide you through new walkthroughs.

New walkthroughs

The 'Show me how...' menu that appears on the right side of the screen on the Saba Cloud Admin page provides step-by-step instructions to help administrators accomplish key tasks.

Notes:

- The 'Show me how...' menu is displayed only if your System Administrator has enabled the following walkthrough-related properties for your site under System > Configure System > Microsites > Configure Microsite > *(MicroSiteName>* > Site Properties > Walk Me:
 - Walk Me Enabled: This property determines whether the "**Show Me How**" library is displayed on the right-hand side of the user interface for administrators when navigating in an administrative context.
 - Walk Me for home page: The URL to the published WalkMe walkthroughs:

https://cdn.walkme.com/users/9307/walkme_9307_https.js

- The walkthroughs only work in full screen.
- The walkthroughs are only available in English.
- In most configurations, 3rd party cookies must be enabled for WalkMe to load in the web browser.

This menu now includes the following new walkthroughs:

- Assign a room to a class
- Purge content

Chapter **15**

Deprecated features

Topics:

• IE 11 - End of Support

This section includes topics to guide you through the deprecated features.

IE 11 - End of Support

As we documented in the last release, in order to keep up with browser security requirements and the latest software enhancements and to continue our focus on bringing you the most innovative technology, we will not continue to develop or test for Microsoft applications beyond their own support commitment. With the December 2021 release, we will withdraw support and compatibility testing of IE11.

On 17th August 2020, Microsoft announced that Microsoft Teams will stop supporting Internet Explorer 11 (IE11) on 30th November 2020 and Microsoft 365 products will end IE11 support on 17th August 2021. Read more in Microsoft's announcement.

Our support retirement will follow the schedule below:

- Between now and Saba Cloud Update 51, we will fix critical bugs with the use of IE11 browsers.
- Beginning with Saba Cloud Update 52, we will no longer be testing IE11.
- Support will completely end after Saba Cloud Update 51 is available in production (General Availability: December 6th, 2021). After that time, use of Saba Cloud with IE11 may not provide a seamless user experience.

We strongly recommend that you partner with your IT teams to review your browser usage and encourage your team to upgrade to supported browsers. Microsoft recommends the use of Microsoft Edge.